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urnov 41 7486 91 14 18431 143 46 442 164

Profit attributabl to

hold 19678 792 78 601 12 4j 1644 29022 029

nt rim dividend id 880 880 880 880 880 106 11 11

Fin divid nd propo ed 826 82 28 O11 36 40 4517 17

Profit forth
ye ret in 972 086 41 21 81 11 47 47 54

Fix ets 16 74 76 698 9612 1022 10 11624 10

mv tm nt properti 120 11476 11999 876 10 11710 14 08 497 670

As ociate 111264 1186 71 10 08 122 40 12 027 1294 14 67144 77 1480

non curr nt ets 9769 80 1270 067 0123 0421 46 162 400

urr nt ss 145 19 18 204 67 46067 2768 6o

Total ss urr nt

Ii bit 17679 18 189777 188879 197177 Ot396 60 6409

Bank and oth loans 1806 18728 19 16 17907 1868 27 09

Loan from
joint

lopm nt partn 4000 4000 2000

tax Ii biliti 194 189 16 428 S44 00

et 1679 166 170 0617216817884 1866 00795227067 947

pr nting

hr
apital 118 118 118 118 118 118 1158 118 11

hare premium 93 31 11

erve 14902 11 81 284 17640162081 141918047 1172214644 110

Shareholderfund 159fl 161627 167731681 917697 181 08 19 22661 251

Minority nt sts 78 4647 44 40 14 4761 406

Total equi 1679 166274 10 06 172168 17884 186669 2007 706 294/ p404

har holders fund

NBV HK$ 6887 6978 71 74 78 8442 96 9/ 10

Earning pr shai HK$ 402 710 12 56

Dividend pr re HK$ 160 160 168 180 200 220

Not Pri ye figur ye en tat ace unt for th prior ye dju tm nt de rib in fbi Oi

to financial tat ents
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2008 Change

Restated

HK$ Milon

Profit before share of results of

Hutchison Whampoa Group 6693 91

Share of profit of Hutchison Whampoa Grouo 6336 12/o

Pront attriburab to sharenolders 13029 530/0

Earnings per share HK$563 53%

Dividend per share HK$7 45 10%

The Groups audited piofit attributable to shareholders Th Group udit

or the year ended 1st December 7009 amounted to

HK$19226 mill on 2008 restated HK$13029 lion
ofit attnbut bi

Earnings pcr share were HK$8.59 2008 Gestated harehold unt

HK$5.63 HK$1 86 milhon

mr dby

The rectors iecom nend the payment of final dividend of HK 20 per share re pect of

2009 to shareholder whose names appear on the Registei of Members of the Company on

27th May 2010 This together with the interim dividend of HK$0 50 per share gives
total ot

HK$2.70 per share for the year 2008 HK$2.45 per share The proposed linal dividend II he

paid on 1st June 2010 following approval at the 7010 Annual General Meeting
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Report of the Chairma and the Managing Director conhinueci

209 WdS cha lcng nq year for most econom es and busir csses arour the globe As result of

our prudent approach tc ianagi ig risks and strengtie ing ott perations we weie abk to deliver

solid growth and good retur is shareho den in th difficult environment For the year ended

31st embcr 1009 the ioups pio befo aaie of results the -lutcaison WIi mpoa iroup

vas HK$11808 mill on

Solid prog es was aade al of our operating activities during thc year We recorded satisfactory

jrowth caitrbuttoris om pioperty sales and property renal Coatribiton frog hotel aid ervi ed

suites has dec eased as rest of cur er economic conditions Returns fiom ivectment and finnce

voc qlir corparc tO ast ecr given thc irp overrent the indnud rnarkeh iii tl Ic lath

it of 2Ci09 ihe cignifit ant increise in the fair value sf iruvestmcnt properties was rccorded na ly

due to tie cor plc ton of new project du ing the year nd rejiew

2009 in Review

Repercussior fr the financial crisis wind began in 1008 conti iued to be fclt in vat ous marke

around he globe lhc
evetity of the downti impacted not only ti bankinq and finanaal indust

ut also all other sectors to varying deqiees acluding trade and iommerce real estate hotel anci

travel as well as rctai

Hor Kong has btnefitc from support of the .ei tr al end ocal uover atne its poli ies ar

int atiws Aft ot ciasecuti quarters of contraction the domestic economy resumed year on year

growtl of in tie ot rth quartei of 2009 nd real GDP foi the lull year fell by Iron

1008 Overall the local eco aomy as steadily stabiised

he Oroups propt rty business Hong Kc ng as benefited from the sol pei torn ance ol Fe oc

oropet ty ector in 1009 when property transactions and pi ices were supported by high evel

uffurdability and the inwuidung of pent-up demand lii view the pieviiiny ow inteiest

env ronment and the overnments tec ent enhancement of the Applicatio 1st System aimed at

ncreaing the flexibility of land supply the ocal operty ma ket expectcd to rcmain stable and

positive in the medium to longer term

In 2009 the Group executed Is development nitiatives as schedu ed ad iegistered sound results

for its various property pro ects The ncrease tt mcver and profit contmibutio from our oroperty

operations was sat factory Act ons to further cxpand our we estal shed laid bank have cortinued

th low iver age land acquisition cost we are cont dent that we can generate good return or

our ex sting land reserves which are suttic ient to underpn develop nent plans over the coining five

to six years
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Good piogress ias ben made by the Group property business the Ma nland Var ot pro ects

are progressing as planned and the proportion of contribution from thcse operations cont nues

to giow satisfactorily While the Central Government is mit ating me is ire iimed at regu ating

loan supply and curta 1mg home price ises thest measures will be bcne cia to ti tabi ty and

sustainability of the market in the longei term The Group has confidence .n the stiong fu dame itals

aid tremendous potential of the Mainlands maiket We wil actively piepar foi further exoar son

by making prudent selective investments in qual ty tes and projects in the Mainland

The Group has seized growth opportunit es as they irise overse mai ket such as Singapore id

the United Kingdom Thc satisfactory cont ibution from operations
these markets vi ei able us

to further inciease thi value of oui property portfolio

Usted Affiliated Companies

We are well positioned to capture opp tunities obally througt the st ategic nvestmc nts in

isted affi iated compan es particu arly through the Hutchison Whanpoa Gioups dive sited bL sinesses

across 54 countr es of the con businesses of hese companies recordEd sol pci foimanccs

2009

The Hutchison Whampoa Group he global opera ions thc iLhison iampoa Group

performed solidly desp te vety diffi ilt operating rnviron nent in 1009 The Mi bus ness currently

developing on steady improving course With improvement in asi dow he debt cvel of the

Hutchison Whampoa Group was educed Overall the bus nesst of the Litchisc Whampoa Ci oup

are progressing well will coitinue to look to commit new ivestment op tal to further expand

its core businesses and is Jorgi ahead to grow as iew opportunities emerge There rema many

elements of unceita nty in the global economy but we arc ontident in the growth prospects

the Hutchison Whampoa Group 1010 ban ng na or ifote et ii circumstinces

CKI CheunQ Konq Infrastructure Ho dings Limited C.Kl iecordcd strong peiform nce or

1009 which was pleasir given challenging economi co iditions It ias an established rack

record of steady growth and contir ued increase ir dividends as well as tie capability to oveicome

challenges and diffict Ities such as those of the recent financ ia crisis KI is op stic about its

future prospects and will continue to build on its growth momentum sound indamentals aid solid

bus nc ss foundation
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Report of the Chairman and the Managing Director continued

HK Electric Hongkorg lectri Holdings mited HK Llectric wported lower earnings from it

Hong Kong operations to the lower rate perrn tted return undei the nevv Scheme of Cor tro

Agrcerrierit arid lovver casn deposit oaiances aria deposit inreres rates The impact of the decreaseo

Hong Kong earnings wa substantially offset by the strong operat ng result from activ ties outsid

Hong Kong with earnings significantly increased from those recorded for 2008

CK Life Sciences CK fe Sciences tnt Holdings Inc CK fe Sciences recorded good

performance in 2009 Tf significant turnaround in overall results can be laigely attr buted to

increased prolitability in the health sector and mproved investment returns Us well as reduction

nance costs OK Life Sc ences will continue to leverage its sound fundamentals id steady buariess

operatios to drive for better performan in the future Continued fforts wi be made to stream inc

arid consolidate existing operations ad to explore opportun ties to expand prude tly

Looking Ahead

Theie have been early gns of in provemerit the Luropean and the eco orniies Wh the

global rxiarket has yet to fully stahilise Ind it is still confronted by imber of unce rtaintiec an

potential problems aclud the risks associated with the debt problems of certain nations tf

general economic condit ons worldwide should improve fui ther 2010 as comoared to 2009

The Mainiana economy returned to laster track 01 growtr 2009 stimulated by strong

governmentded investment and consumption Real GDP growth was /00 for the yeai and

expected to remain at evel of over 8% in 2010 lhe Central Covernment has stated its intent on

to mainta proactive fiscal policies and moderate re axed monetary measures arid to pus ahead

with econom restructuring by promoting private consumption Against this backdrop the Mainland

economy is expected to ma ntain steady pace of growth 2010 arid tci show omising long ten

prospec ts

The Mainlands development and steady growtt will continue to pro\/de solid suppo for Hong Kng
economy Accelerated ecoaomc cooperation with the Main and should present Hong Kong with

good growth opportun es and support steady sustainable economic iecovery and development

We ave conf dence in the medium and longer term economic propects of the Mainland and Hong

Konc
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The Group is steadfast in its strategy invest the futuie by following its prima operating

principle of achieving balancc between ogress and stabil ty the Group has considerable

reserves to draw upon ar has solid inancial strength Barn sg any nforeseen circunis inces

the Groups shareholders funds will ontinue to grow significantly and the Groups ab lity

generate cash will continue to be strong in the com ng ycais We opeiate wits very low

gearing ratio approximately So at yeat end and have the ability to mobilise not less th in

HK$50 billion to take advantage of tin ely investment opportun ties for argo sc.ale development

yen its ste igths 3nd potential thi Cheung Kong Group un quely aced for futuie growth

and expans on We are very c.onfiden the prospeUs of the Group 2010 and beyond

Intell gent cieative dedicated and loyil mployees are the Groups most va uable asset this

extremely competitive and thallenging global env.ron nent We take this oppoi tunity to tha ik our

colleagues on the Board the staff membeis of the roup and our diiger employees worldw de

for their hard work loyal ser ice and contributior dunng the yea

Li Ka-shing Li Tzar Kuoi Victor

Chairmas Manag ng Directo

Hong Korg 30th March 2010



1$ C.HLUNG KONG HOLDINGS Mi lID

Management Discussion and Analysis

Developments Completed during 2009

18 Hertaqe

.iestial Heuc hts

Piases and

l3IbOur Plaza Dcg ees

Regency Park

tases 1A md 18

Ret enc Rc sudeiu

Pase

Nbe liii

tasos 14

181 and 1B2

Le Paic

PhasEs 1A and

ape oral

ha 1A 3rud lB

Noble Hul

Phases lAand 181

Seasons IRs

Ph 4A

Rgency Paik

Phases VIA VIII

mnd VILlA

hi gen ari

Phases nd

le Sommct

Phise IA

The Gueenwuct

Phse JA

Kerry Iverbu ght utv

haso JIB

Locadon

Kowloor In and

LotNo 11161

Kowloo Inland

Lot No 11114

The Remaining Poiton of

Kowloon Inland

Lot No 4013

Junqyuetan anqchui

wigtian change hurt

Wanqchng Junxu 10 Dadao

Changst-a

Hugh Tech lone Chengdu

Nanan Chongqunq

Dotx Chongqing

Huamu Road Pudong Sh nghau

Huamu Ro Pudong Sh mghu

Guanhn Shenzher

Pi sq Hu Longgang Shenhen

Hi Tech Industrial Development

Lone Xian

lhabe Disti ict Shanghai

Name
Total Gross Groups

Floor Area Interest

sq

13023 100

159804 900

21 110 1000

61143 500

L84

28432 50

192108 50c

220384 41

11831 309

1300 Oo

12322 30o

97232 0o

58455 5000

11/31

55150 24 75
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Conduit 18

Festival ity

Phases and

Marina Bay Residences md
Marina Bay Financ al Cc ntre

Phase

Ia Grande Vile

Phase

Regency Park

Phase

Regency Residence

Phases and IA

Noble Hils

Phases lB2 1B3 and

iannir Project

Phases 1A and lB

Le Parc

Phase

Regency Oasis

Phase JA

Nobe lills

Phases JB1 JBJ and 1C

Ito Rivei side and

Metropolitan Pla7a

Phases and

lhoupu Pro ect

Phase

lii Shui Wai Town

Lot No 14

Site AB of The Renaming Pot tion

of iseung Kwan Town

Lot No 70

Section of

Inlard Lot No 711

Sha lown

to No 519

Mali Bay Singapore

Development in Progress and Scheduled for Completion in 2010

Total Gross

Name Location Floor Area

sq

69457

216430

Central Park Towers 11

IOHAS Park

Le Prestige and Lc Prime

Groups
Interest

984/o

Joi it

Vt nture

1000.i

Joint

Venture

16.7o

1004

50o

50

30

50

5000

30o

500

30O

2961

700144

243191

95411

ill 113

45383

1514/6

13/i

319511

91 512

133485

241809

Shur Vi Distik.L Beijing

ingy jetan Ch ingchun

Nanguan Char gchun

Wanqcheng Ji ixing Dadao

hanasha

Tianning District Changzhou

gh Tech 7one hengdu

Wenjang Chengdu

Doux Chongquig

Huangsha MTR Station Podium

Guanghou

houpu Nanhui Area Shanghai 3118/ 42 bo
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Management Dscusson and Anayss continued

Maqiao town MIng Hang Area

Shanghai

Huamu Road Pudong Shangha

Shonnan Road Huaqungbe

uuan Dotnct Shenihen

Guanlan Shen7hen

Ping Longgang Shenzhen

Yngkoudao Aanjn

CadIan VVuhan

loch Indusinal Developmenr

Zone Xan

LocationName

Regecy Cove

Phases 1A 16 and

Rope Park

Phase 116

entury Pla

Regency Park

hase

Le Somi et

Phases 1A and

lHanjin Metropohtan

Phases and

Caidian Project

Phase IA

Greenwid

PCases lB and 2A

Tota Gross

Hoor Area

sq

44292

9954

1/9606

60336

53910

15/89/

5987

268 475

Group

nte rest

42 50

50c

4000

50/

500o

40

500o

50o
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New Acquisitions and Joint Developments and Other Major

Hong Kong

Apri 2009 wholly wnei subsidiary of tie Groip ieached in agieerient wi the

Gmment in tespect of the site at 813 ..ai 10k Road Cheung SI.a Wai Wv Kowloon

Inland Lot No 6354 With an ana of app oxn ately 2844 sq in the site is desiqiated

for commercial and esidential development estimated to havc developable gias ooi

area of about 13996 sq July 2009 tie Group completed the lind cxc iangc. and

executed th land qrnt witl the ovemment iespect of the devalopme fl

Auqubt 2009 wiho Ob Nu sbsidnr of the roL aqird 87 v1a i. Wi Roal

Hung lom Subsecto Sibsection Sec oi of Subsection he Rerii Potor

ofSubsectioi8 Subsecion9ndSubecton loot SectioiAof Kowooi Mar ie bt No

With an area of approxmtey 543 sq thc sdc desigrit foi corner Ia .ini

iesidentii developri nt estimated to hate Jeve op ble gross floor art of ippiox mat ly

352/sq

October 2009 wholly ow kd subsid ary of the Group acquired 33- 39 le ti Road

North Point the Remaini Portion of Inland Lot No 3319 th on ea of approximately

697 sq the sile is car mirked foi res dentia deve OF ment est iited to have

devclopable oss floor area of aporoximate ly 6276 sq in

Novembet 2009 wf oily ow subsidiary if the soup et to 12000000000 Euto

Medium Term Nie Proqrami the Progromiie or tfe pi pos of sung ctcs çfl

Notes wiich may be denoinated currency as acreed vth the dealci nri

time to tin he maxi num aggi egate no imoun all Notes ot 1st dir inca

the Programme frort nc to time will not exceed 000 00000 The Proq an

provides that the Notes may be isted on The Stock Lxi hr.ge of Ho ig 10 Liri tea oi

such other or furthei stock exchanges is iy be apreed th Di re evan aler

January 2010 wholly owned subs diary of the soup success lly won the con act for

the oint develop neit of two sites locited at tai Cli Kok RoadlKweili reel md Yec

Kuk Street Shari Shui P0 ir publ tenth exe cisc In Feet uary 2010 the Goup
entered into development agreement th the Urb Renevial Author ty for tt jo nt

development of the sites Witt an aggregate ea of approx nate 3339 sq the

sites are par ned for commercial an residentia development estim to ave ta

developable gross oor area of appi ox in itely 29 643

Duiing the iear ider review the Group continued to icquire oioit tie aid aq icu turi

and with potential for deve opment Some of the oroperties and ag icultu al land arc

under varyinq stages of design and plan iing appl ca ior

The Mainland and Overseas

November 2009 wholly owned ubsid ary of tt Group successful or ne farce

of landat Upper Thomson Road nsingaporewthasiareaofapproximately2o848 ri

for develop nent into residenT al properties

During the year unde rev ew the Group property projects the Mainhnd rid overseis

were on schedu both in terms of sales and leasing
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Management Discussion and Analysis continued

Turnover of property sales for the year nc uding share of property sales of iointly controlled entitic

was HK$21 ilhon 2008 IK$ 3889 million an icrease of -IK$7o14 mi lion whe co npared

with ast yeai and corn rised mainly the sale of the iemaining residential units of fout oroperty

projccts completed last year the Capitol and Seasons Monaich in Hong Kong and Ma son de

Aitistes and Regency Park Phase VU Shingh 3i and the sale of rcsidential nits of property projects

completeddunnqtheyearindudingCtlestia Hrghts Phases and in Hong Kong Le Par Phae

hengdu Cape oral Phase in hongqing Regency Park Phases and Shenhen and severa

oth oroperty projects in the Mainland

onnibution 4rorr1 nropety sales inciuding share of results ol joint cntcdled tit 03

HK$8396 million 2008 HK$6547 million an nciease of HK$1 949 mi ion ien coriparid

last yeai While econon recovery in Hong Kong and the Main and was underway the oropety

market was xtive dunng the year with strong demand foi residen al pioperties and property xices

picktd up sharply amid ow mortgage interest rates md expectat on of inf Thon

Contribution from prope ty sales for 2010 will mainly be derived iom he sale of esident al iits

Central Paik Towers 11 Le Piestige to Prime La Mer and estival City Phases and Hong

Kong La Grande Ville Ph iw in Beijing The Riverside Phase in Guangiho Regency Cove Ph ises

and in shanghai ceitury Place and Regency Park Phase Shenzhen Marina Bay Reside x.es

Singapore and several other operty piouts scheduled for completion

Duiing the year the presale of residential units of Central Park Towers IL I.e Prestige and Le

Honq Kong were launc ied and all the units were soon sold out whereas the presalo of residentia1

units of various property projects in the Manland met with good mai ket respo ise he presale of

res dential units of La and Festival City Phase have also been lat nd ed in irch 2010 an

piesale results have beer satisfactory

Turnover of the Groups property renta for the yeai was HK$1155 million 2008 HK$945 rnllioi

an crease of IK$2 10 million when compared with last year mainly due to higher rental secure

oy Thc Center commercial office property in Hong Kong for eases ienewed before tha global

nancial crisis took ace last year and the completion of 1881 Her age new ientage ievitalisation

landmark for cultural touiisrn shopping and leisure in Hong Kong which commenced gene at ng rei tal

ncome dui mg the first half year The roups existing investment propeitics comprise mainly reta

shopp ng malls and com eicial office propert es in Hong Kong which accou ited fot app oxin ati ly

37 and bi respective of the turnover the sroup proper rental or the year

Contnbution from the Groups property iental was -IK$ 1062 million 2008 HK$829 million md

contr butio including share of results of jo ntly contiolled ent tie was HK$1139 mill on 2009

HK$1449 million an ncrease of HK$190 mill on when con-pared wth last year The ocal conniest al

leasing market eased in the first half yea while businesses cut back osts and reduced on

space equirements in the wake of the global financial crisis As business sentiment and con um

confidence gradually improved in the second half year rentals for ietil and commercial opertie

becam more stable
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At the year end date the Gioup accounted for an increasc the iii value of investment properties

of HK$3851 mi ion 2008 HK$134 million based on professional valuation mainly attr butable

to the completion of 1881 Heritage duiinq the year and shared an increase in th fa alue of

investment properties of HK$693 million 2008 HK$461 million of jo nt controlled entities

Turnovei of the Groups hotels and serviced suites for the year wa HK$1 399 iT illion 1008

HK$1383 million an increase of HK$16 Ilion when compared with ast year the increase

tumover was ma nly attributable to the peiing of Harbour ai Hong Korg during the yen whith

offset dc crease in turnover due to decrease demand for hote ar serviced suites in Hong

Kong and the Main and as result of recession in the global economy

Contiibution from the Groups hotels ard serviced suites was HK$360 Ilion 2008 HK$ 170 mllion

and contribution ncluding share of results of jointly controlled entities was HK$51 Ilion 2008

HK$810 mill on decrease of HK$293 million when compared with ast year Du ing the year

operating cond tions for hote and serviced suites were difficult with low occupancy and roo rates

and opera ing results were fui ther affected by the spi ead of Influenza Hi Ni worldwide dui ing

the first half yeat

Besides the opening of larbour Grand Hong Kong the first half year Hai bour Plaa grees

so commenced operation in the second ralf year Both hotels are located Hong Kong and WI

further their contnbution to group profit when the local econorr benefits from the global economic

recoveiy

Turnover of property and oject management for the year was HK$216 mi lion 1008

HK$219 mi Ion which income from property management was HK$158 million 2008

HK$15/ million an increase of HK$1 mil ion when compared with last year and ncome

fiori project related services was HK$68 illion 2008 HK$62 niIl on an ncrease of

HK$6 mil ion when compared th last year

Contr but on from property management was HK$103 mill on 2008 HK$98 million an ncrease of

HK$5 millior when co npared with last year wi project te ati services made small contribution

to group profit

The Group committed to providing high quality services to properties under our management At

the year end date the total floor area under the Groups property management was approximately

86 lion square feet and this is expected to grow steadi following the gradual comp flon of the

Group property projects in the years ahead

The Hutchison Whampoa Gioup sted associate reported piof it attr butable to shareho ders for

the year
ended 31st December 2009 of HK$14168 million 2008 çrestated HK$12681 million

the Life Sciences Group another listed associate teported profit attributable to shareholders Ioi

the year ended 31st December 2009 of HK$187098 000 2008 loss of HK$351768000
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Mdnagement Discussior and Analysis continued

tht oup monitois its liquidity .quiremc its on short to mediun to basi and arranges

iefin org he Groups boriow ng when ipp opr ate Duiing thc year the Gioup purctastd

tack notes due in 201 he otil mount of HK$111 ni ion redeemd notes upon matt.rty

the amourt of Fik$ billion

At tie year ena tE the Gioup bo id and iotes bank lai ar othcr loais tincit dirg

rom oint develop non partner imounted to HK$6 bi lion HK$23 bi Ion and

K$4 bi Ii iespectively and roup total borrowings werc HK$34 billioi decrei

Fl $9 bi on om the end of last yea the mitur ty of spreac ovet poiiod of no

ye rs wit HK$9 bil io repayat Ic within one yea IK$4 on thin two to ye yeat id

HK$1 blio beynl fiie year

the oups goat ng ra io at thc year end date vas approxmatcly bo dttcrriired as the proportor

of lie jroips net bor wii qs atte deducting bank balances and depost of HK$11.4 blior

iareh Ide finds

Vi I- nd intl ketatk seam es in ha ci wel is ivailah Fnnknc frululues he irnupc uqud

roston ret ian st oig ird the Guoup ias sufficient fuia iM urtes to satisfy ts commitments

nd vorii ig cap ta eqt reme its

lhc
ip in n3 onservatvt apptoach on foregn exchancie exposuie management At tic

tar end date app oxi tely ./00 of the Group borrowings wer HK$ the balance ii

JS swi ipc nto U$$ and S$ ia nly for tie purpose of nan ing krojects outside Honq Kong

tao
ir

denies ts revenue mainly in HK$ cash balances and arketable ecurities are mauntai ied

rviir in HK$ or US$ and tie roup ensures that its exposure tc fluctuations in loregn exchanje

ite siinutrsed

The stoup DO rowings are principally on oatinc ate basis The ixed rate bonds and notes

ssued Ly thc Group iive associated swap irringe nents placc to conve tte ates Elated

orur to foatng atc hss

Vie opri ito and it tumcs of interest att ot exch inge ate ncerta or vo atility iedgi ig

nstr mntc Juidinr p_ forwards ac ised hj the Group in thr ry aia.jemenf of epost

to uiterest rate and oieuj exchange rale flu tuations
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At the year end date certain subsidiane3 of the Group pledged asstc with aggregate .arrying value

of HK$1014 million 008 HK$1091 mil ion to secure bank loan facilities utilised

At the
year

end date the Groups contingent iabilities were as follows

guarantees provided for minimum share of revenue/prof receivable by other partners of jo nt

development pro ects amounted to HK$1398 million 2008 HK$1410 million and

guarantees provided for bank loans utilised by jointly controlled entities and investee company

amounted to HK$1 605 million 2008 HK$ 1534 million and HK$283 millio 2008 Ni

respectively

At the year end date he Group employed approximately 8700 employees for its pnnopal businesses

The related employees costs for the year exduding directors emoluments amounted to approximately

HK$1599 vull on The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are ompetitive and

employees are rewarded on performance related basis together with reference to the profitability

of the Group remuneration benchmarks in the industry and prevailing market conditions within the

general framework of the Groups salary and bonus syste it rhe iroup does not have any shore

option scheme for employees
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Risk Factors

The Groups businesses financial conditions results of operations or growth prospects nay he

affected by risks and uncertainties peitaining to the Groups businesses The factors set out below

are those that the Group believes could result the Gioups businesses financial conditions esults

of operations or growth prospects diffei ing mater ally from expected or storical resu ts hose

factors are by no means exhaustive or comprehensiv and theie may be other nsks in addition to

those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but

could turn out to be mater al in the future In addition ths Annual Report does sot constitute

recommendation or advice for you to invest in the shares of the onpany and investors are advised

to make their own judgment oi consult their own investment advisors before making any investment

in the sf ares of tfie Company

The global markets were severely hit by the nancial and credit crisis triggered 2008 by the

subprime moqage predicament and the magnitude and undisciiminating nature of the adverse tal out

across various countries and economic sectors was unprecedented The negative repercussions of

tight global credt market had esulted increased stock market volatility worsening unemp oyment

and contraction of economic activities in emerging markets as well as major developed economies

Despite the recovery in the various global markets the latter half of 2009 the economic fundamental

data has yet to revve fhe debt ciis in Dubai that occurred in late 7009 reflected the continuing

market risks associated with the tight global credit market The Group has diversified operations

in 54 cou itries arou id the world Any continuing adverse economic condit ons in those countries

and places which the Group operate may therefore impart on the Gioups financial position or

potential income asse va ue and liabil ties

There exist general risks inherent in prope ty development and in the ownersh of properties includirg

among other things risks that nancing for development may iiot be available on favourable terms

char conscruction may not be completed on scnedule or within oudget chat long4errn financing

may not he available on completion of construction that developed properties may not be sold or

eased on profitable tems that there will be intense competition from other developers or property

owners which may lead to vacant propeit es or an inability to sell or rent properTies on favourable

terms that purchasers or tenants may default that properties held for rental purpose II need to

be renovated repaired and ie let on period basis that it may not be poss be to renew leases

or re let spaces when existing leases expire and that the operty market condrtioris aie sub oct

to changes in environmental laws arid regulations and zoning aws and other governmental ules

arid fisca policies Property values and rental values are so affected by factors such as polit ma

developments governmental regulations and changes in annir or tax laws evels of interest rates

and consumer prices and the overall supply of properties

Investment in property is generally ill guid which may mit the ability of the Group tiix ely realising

property assets nb cash
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Risk Factors continuec

In addition suitable land of significant size are not easy to obtain due to limited ndcveloped land

aiea iii Hong Kong In the Mainland the supply of substantially all land to tolled by the relevant

authorities and land piemium has to be pa to the relevant author ties tor acquiring inc iana

use ights Acquisition of land in other overseas mai kets may be ubject to various other regulatorg

requ rements or restrictions Future giowth piospects of pioperty developers including the so ip may

the efore be affected by the availability and pr ce levels of prime sites in Hong Kong the Mainland

and othei overseas markets

Besides properties could suffei physical damage by fire or othe causes ind the oup be

cxposed to any potential risks associated with public liability caims resulting in losses ncluding loss

of rent ar va ue of properties which may not be ful compensated for by insurance proceeds

and these may in turn affect the Groups financial conditions or results of operations In addition

there the possibil ty of other losses caused by was and earthquakes for wh ch the Group my
not obtain insurance at reasonable cost or at 311 Should iinsued loss oi losc ii xess

of insured lim ts occur payment of compensation may be required and this may affect the returns

on capital invested in that property The Group would also iemain liable for any debt or other

fin inc al obligation such as committed capital expenditures re ated to that pioperty Ii addit on

insuiance policies will ye to be renewed every yeai and accept bIe termc for coverage will how

to be negotiated thus exposing the oup to tt volatility of the insuiance marke including the

possibi itv of rate increases

The trends the industi ies in which the Group opeiates ncluding the property market sent ment

and conditions the property values in Hong Kong mark to maiket value of securities investments ttic

cui rency environment and nterest rates cycles may pose gnificant impact on the so ps result

There can be io assurance that the cmbination of industry trends 3nd interest rates the Grour

experiences in the future will not adveisely affect its nancial condit ons oi resu ts of operations

In part cular income from finance and treasury operations dependent uoon the capital market

interest rate and currency environment and the worldwide economic and market conditions and

herefore there can be assurance that changes in these conditions will not adverse affect thc

Groups financial conditions or results of operations he volatilities in the nancial markets nay al

adversely affect the income to be der ved by the Group from its finance and treasury act ties

The Groups principal business operations face gnif cant competition across the markcts which

thcy operate New market entrants and ntensified price competition amono existing market aycrt

could adversely affect the Groups financia conditions or results of operalons Competit on iisks

faced by the Group include an increacing iu nber of developers undertal ing property investment

md development in hong Kong the Mainland and in other overseas markels wh ch may affect the

market share and returr of the Group and significant competition and pricing piessuie
from

other developers and may adversely affect thc financial performa cc of th Group operations
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The iesults of the Group recorded in long Kong dollars out is various subsidiaries assoc 0tes ad

joint ventures may receive revenue and incur expenses in other currenc es My currency
fluctuations

on translation of the accounts of these subsidiaries assoc ates and joint ventures and also oi

the repatr ation of earnings equity investments and loans may therefore impact on the Groups

performance Although curier cy exposures have been managed by the Group depreciation or

fluctuation of the currencies in which the Group conducts operations re ative to the Hong Kong

dollar could adversely affect the Group financ al conditions or resu ts of operations

Some of the businesses of the Group are conduc ed through non wholly-owned subsidiaries

associates and jo nt ventures in which the Gioup shares control in whole or in part and stra egic

alliances had been formed by the Group with other strategic or business partners There can be no

assurance that any of these strategic or business partners wil co itinue then relationships with the

Group in the futuie or that the Group will be able to pursue its stated strategies with respect to its

ron wholly-owned subsidianes associates and joint ventures and the markets which they operate

Furthermore the joint venture partners may have economic or business interests or goals that are

iconsistent with those of the Group take actions contrary to the Groups po cies or objectives

undergo change of control expeience financial and other dfficult es or be urabie or

unw Iling to fulfill their obligations undei the oint ventures which may affect the Group financial

conditions or results of operat ons

The local business sks in different countries and Lies in wh ch the oup operates could have

material mpact on the financial conditions results of operations and growtl prospects of the businesses

in the relevant market The Group has nvestments in different cour tries and cites around the wo
and the Group is and may ncreasingly become exoosed to different and changino political social

legal tax regulatory and environmental requirements at the local national or international level

Also new policies or measures by governments whether fisca tax iegulatory environmental ot

other competitive changes may lead to an increase in additional or unplanned capital expendi.uue

pose nsk to the overall nvestment retum of the Groups businesses and may delay or pree it the

commercia operation of business th resulting loss of revenue and profit

ihe Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants HKICPA has from time to time issued

new and ievised Hong Kong Fnancial Reporting Standards HKFRS As accounting standards

continue to develop HKICPA maj in the future ssue more new and revised HKFRS and the Group

may be required to adopt new accounting policies which might oi could have signficant impact

on the Groups financ al position or results of operations
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Risk Factors continued

In 1003 there was an outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome SARS Hone Konci the

Mainland and other places The SARS outbreak had significant adverse impact on the economies of

the affected areas In 2009 the spread of Influenza Hi Ni also affected many ateas of the world

There can be no assurance that the spread of Influenza H1N1 wi not continue and there will Pot

be iother significant globa outbreak of severe communic able disease su as avian influenza or

SARS If such an outbreak were to occur it may have matei ial adverse impact on the operations

of tP Group and ts res its of operations may suffer

Hutchison Whampoa Limited Hutch son is also listed on Stock Fxchange of Hong Kong

Limited Although the Group believes that its relationship with Huichison provides it with significant

business advantages the relationship iesults in vat ious connected transactions under the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on ihe Stock Exchange of Hong Kong timted the Listing Rules

and accordingly any transact ons enteted irto between the Group and Hutchison its subsidiaries

or associates are connected transactions which unless one of the exemptions is wailable wil be

3ublect to compliance lh the applicable requirements of the Listing Rules ncluding the issuance

of announcements the obtaining of independe it shateholders proval at general meetings ar

discloc.ue ri annual reports and accounts Independent shareholdeis appioval requirements may so

lead to unpredictable outcomes iusing disruptions to as well as ncrease the isks of the Grour

business activities Independent shaieiolders may also take actions tF at re in confl c.t with the

nterests of the Group

lie Group owns approx mately 49 9% of the Hutchison Whampoa Group which operates in on

50 ountres around the wot Id and he ice ts financial conditions and results of operations may be

affected by the local market conditions and the economy of the places where business operat ons

ate located as well as any litigation against
them The Group financial cond ons and results of

operations are matenally affected by the financial conditions and res its of operations of the lutdusor

Whampoa Group In addition the core businesses of the Hutchison Whampoa oup are different

fiom those of the Group and as result the Group is indirectly exposed to the risks the Hutchison

Whampoa Group facinq

The performance and the results of operations of the Group dun ig the past years as con tai ied

this inual Report ite historical in nature and past performanc can be no guarantee of futu

results of the Group This Annual Report may contain forward looking statements and opinions
hat

nvolve nsks and uncertainties Actual iesults may ffei materia ly from expectations discussed

such forward ooking statements and opinions Neither the Group nor the Directors employees

agents of the Group assume any obligation to coirect or update the forward looking statementc

or opinions contained in this Annual Report and any iabi ty in the event that any of tic

forward ooking stateme its ot opinions does not matenalise or turns out to be ncorrect
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Report of the Directors

The principal actMties of the Company are investment holding and project management Its subsid aries

are active in the field of property development and investment hotel and serviced suite operation

property and project management and investment in securities

Results of the Group for the yeai ended 31st December 2009 ate set out the consolidated ncome

statement on page 92

he Directors recommend the payment of final vide id of HK$2.10 pet share which together

with the intenm dividend of HK$0.50 pci share paid on 6th Octobei 2009 makes total dividend

of HK$2.70 per share for the year

Movements in fixed assets dunnq the year ate set out in note to the nancial statemer ts

Moverients in reservts of the Company and the Group during the year aic set out in note çe2

to the financ al statements and in the consolidated statement of chnges in equ ty on page 9b

espect vely

Results assets and liabilit es of the Gioup for the last ten years are summarised on page

Particulais of major pioperties held by the Group are set out on pages 86 to 91

the Duectors of the Company are sted on page 140 The Diiectors biographical information set

out on pages 14 to 11

Mr Kwan Chiu Yin Robert an Independent Non-execut ye Director ol the Company passed away
6th October 2009

In accordance with the Companys Articles of Association the Directois of the Company includi

Non-executive Dirators shall be subject to ret rement by rotat on at each annual general meeting

Mr Li Tzar Kuol Victor Mr Ip tak Chuen Edmond Mr Chiu Kk Hung Justin Mr Chow Kun

Roland Mr Yeh Yuan Chang Anthony Mr Chow Nm Mow Abert and Dr Wong Yick-m ng
Rosanna will retire from office and beng el gible offer themselves foi re election at the forttcomng

annual general meeting

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securit es on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong United Listing Rules The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive

Directors meet the independence guidelines set out Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and aie

independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines
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Report of the Directors continued

Directors Interests and Short Postons in Shares UnderIyng Shares and Debentures

As at st December 2009 the nterests or short posiuons of the Directors and duel xecutves of

the ompany in the shares underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its assooated

orpoiations within the meaning of Part XV of the Sw unties and utures Ordinance SF0 svhich

were nofied to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong irnited Stork Exchange

nursua at to Divisions and of Part X\/ of the SF0 includ ng interests shoit positions wF rh they

were taken or deemed have under such piovisions of the SF0 or wh were recorded in se

egiste required to be kept by the Corrpai under Section 352 of the SF0 or which weie required

uruar to the Mode ode cor Seeurites 1ransactoras by Direcwrs dopte1 by he ompa sy th

Model Code to be notified to the Company ad the Stock Exdiangc weie as follows

Long Positions Shares

The Company

Number of Ordinary Shares

Personal Family Corporate Other Approximate

Name of Director Capacity Interest Interest Interest Interest Total of Shareholding

34330 41

p1 1st

Sd 3d 4/

pcu

i13 tw

For

erce
LI 00

230
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Associated Corporations

Hutchison Whampoa Limited

Number of Ordinary Shares

Personal Family Corporate Other Approximate

Name of Director Capacity Interest Interest Interest Interest Total of Shareholding

Li Ka-shng Interest of controfed 64253000 2141698773 2205951773 51.74%

corporations founder Note Note

of dscretionary trusts

Tzar Kuoi Victor Interest of controlled 1086770 2141698773 2142785543 50.26%

corporations Note Note

beneficiary of trusts

Kam Hing Lam Beneficial owner interest 60000 40000 100000 0.002%

of child or spouse

Leung Siu Hon Beneficial owner interest 11000 28600 39600 0.0009%

of child or spouse

Fok Kin-fling Canning Interest of controlled 4810875 4810875 0.11%

corporation Note

Frank John xt Beneficial owner 50000 50000 0.001%

Chow Kun Chee Roland Beneficial owner 49931 49931 0.001%

George Cohn Magnus Beneficial owner interest 40000 9900 950100 1000000 0.02%

of child or
spouse Note

founder
beneficiary

of discretionary trust

Yeh Yuan Chang Interest of cbLd or spouse 124000 124000 0.003%

Anthony

Chow Nm Mow Albert Beneficial owner 97 97 0/a

Hung Siu-lin Katherine Beneficial owner 34000 34000 0.0008/a
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Report of the Directors continued

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited

Number of Ordinary Shares

Personal Family Corporate Other Approximate

Name of Director Capacity Interest Interest Interest Interest Total of Shareholding

Li

Ka-shing
Founder of

discretionary 1912109945 1912109945 84.82%

trusts Note

Li Izar Kuoi Victor
Beneficiary

of trusts 1912109945 1912109945 8482%

Note

Kam Hing Lam Beneficial owner 100000 100000 0.004%

CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc

Number of Ordinary Shares

Personal Family Corporate Other Approximate

Name of Director Capacity Interest Interest Interest Interest Total of Shareholding

Li

Ka-shing
Founder of

discretonary 4355634570 4355634570 45.31%

trusts Note 10

Li Izar Kuoi Victor Beneficial owner 2250000 4355634570 4357884570 45.34%

beneficiary of trusts Note 10

Kam Hng Lam Interest of child or
spouse 6225000 6225000 0.06%

lp
Tak Chuen Edmond Beneficia owner 2250000 2250000 0.02%

Chung Sun Keung Davy Beneficia owner 375000 375000 0.004%

Pau Yee Wan Ezra Beneficia owner 900000 900000 0.009%

Woo Chia Ching Grace Beneficial owner 1125000 1125000 0.01%

Leung
Su Hon Beneficial owner interest 1688130 2000 2970 1693100 0.017%

of child or
spouse

Note

interest of controlled

corporation

Fok Kin-ning Canning Interest of controlled 1500000 1500000 0.015%

corporation Note

Frank John Sivt Beneficial owner 900000 900000 0.009%

Chow Kun Chee Roland Beneficial owner 903936 903936 0.009%

George Cohn Magnus Beneficial owner interest 753360 600 11040 765000 0.008%

of child or spouse Note

beneficiary
of trust

Kwok Tun-hi Stanley
Interest of child or spouse 200000 200000 0.002%

Hung Siu-Iin Katherine Beneficial owner 9000 9000 0%
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Other Associated Corporations

Number of Ordinary Shares

Name of Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Approximate

Company Director Capacity Interest Interest Interest Interest Total of
Shareholding

Beautiland Li Ka-shing Founder of 100000000 100000000 100%

Company discret
onary

trusts Note 11

Lmted

Li Tzar Kuoi Beneficiary of trusts 100000000 100000000 100%

Vctor Note 11

iabrn Lmited Li Ka-shing Founder of 10000 10000 100%

discretionary trusts Note 11

Li Izar Kuoi Beneficiary of trusts 10000 10000 100%

Vctor Note 11

Kobert Lmted Li Ka-shing Founder of 4900 4900 100%

discretionary trusts Note 11

Li Tzar Kuoi Benefcary of trusts 4900 4900 100%

Victor Note 11

Tsing-Yi Realty Li Ka-shing Founder of 3150000 3150000 100%

Limited discretionary trusts Note

Li Izar Kuoi Benefciary of trusts 3150000 3150000 100%

Victor Note 11

Tosbo Limited Li Ka-shing Interest of conurolled 100%

corporations Note Note 12

founder of

discretionary trusts

Hutchison Fok Kin-fling Interest of controlled 5000000 5000000 0.05%

Harbour Ring Canning corporation Note

Limited

Hutchison Fok
Kin-ning

Beneficial owner 4100000 1000000 5100000 0.037%

Telecom- Canning interest of Note

munications controlled

Australia corporation

Limited

Frank John Sixt Beneficial owner 1000000 1000000 0.007%
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Report of the Directors continued

Number of Ordinary Shares

Name of Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Approximate

Company Director
Capacity

Interest Interest Interest Interest Total of Shareholding

Hutchison Li

Ka-shing
Interest of controlled 266621499 2958068120 3224689619 6697%

Telecom- corporations Note Note 13

municat ons founder of

International discretionary trusts

Limited

Tzar Kuoi Interest of controlled 2519250 2958068120 2960587370 61.49%

Victor corporations Note Note 13

beneficiary of trusts

Fok Kin-nng Interest of contro ed 1202380 1202380 0.025%

Canning corporation Note

George Cohn Beneficial owner 13201 132 13333 0.0003%

Magnus interest of child

or spouse

Hutch son Li Ka-shing Interest of controlled 266621499 3066238120 3332859619 69.22%

Telecom- corporations Note Note 14

municat ons founder of

Hong Kong discretionary trusts

Holdings

Lmited Tzar Kuoi nterest of controlled 2519250 3066238120 3068757370 63.74%

Vctor corporatons Note Note 14

beneficiary of trusts

Fok Kn-ning Interest of contro ed 1202380 1202380 0.025%

Cannng corporaton Note

George Cohn Beneficial owner 13201 132 13333 0.0003%

Magnus interest of child

or
spouse
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Long Positions in Underlying Shares

Number of Underlying Shares

Name of Name of Personal Family Corporate
Other

Company Director Capacity
Interest Interest Interest Interest Total

Hutchison Frank John Sixt Beneficial owner 255000
255000

Telecom-
Note 15

municatrons

International

Limited

Hutchison Frank John Sixt Beneficial owner 255000
255000

Telecom-
Note 15

munications

Hong Kong

Holdings Limited

Long Positions in Debentures

Amount of Debentures

Name of Name of
Personal Family Corporate Other

Company Director Capacity
Interest Interest Interest Interest Total

Hutchison Li Tzar Kum Victor Interest of controlled US$10208000 US$10208000

Whampoa corporation
6.5% Notes 6.5% Notes

International
due 2013 due 2013

03/13 Limited
Note

Fok Kin-ning Interest of controlled US$1216000 US$1216000

Canning corporation
6.5% Notes 6.5% Notes

due 2013 due 2013

Note

Hutchison Li Tzar Kuol Victor Interest of controlled US$45792000 US$45792000

Whampoa corporation
7625% Notes 7.625% Notes

International
due 2019 due 2019

09 Limited
Note

Fok Kin-nng Interest of controlled US$4000000 US$4000000

Canning corporation
7625% Notes 7.625% Notes

due 2019 due 2019

Note

Hutchton Fok Kin-ning
Interest of controlled US$4000000 US$4000000

Whampoa Canning corporation
5.75% Notes 5.75% Notes

International
due 2019 due 2019

09/19 Limited
Note
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Report of the Directors continued

Notes

Such interests are held by certain companies of which Mr Li Ka-shing is interested in the entire issued

share capital

The two references to 857794744 shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company Mr Li Ka-shing

is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust DTl and another discretionary trust

DT2 Each of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited TDTl which is the trustee of Dli and

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited TDT2 which is the trustee of DT2 holds units in The Li Ka-Shing

Unity Trust UTi but is not entitled to any interest or share in any particular property comprising the

trust assets of the said unit trust The discretionary beneficiaries of each of Dli and DT2 are inter alia

Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor his wife and children and Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee

Company Limited lUll as trustee of UT1 and companies controlled by TUT1 as trustee of UTI TUTi

related companies hold total of such 857794744 shares

The entire issued share capital of TUT1 and of the trustees of DT1 and DT2 are owned by Li Ka-Shing

Unity Holdings Limited Unity Holdco Each of Mr Li Ka-shing Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor and Mr Li Tzar Kai

Richard is interested in one-third of the entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco lUll is only interested

in the shares of the Company by reason only of its obligation and power to hold interests in those shares

in its ordinary course of business as trustee and when performing its functions as trustee exercises its

power to hold interests in the shares of the Company independently without any reference to Unity

Holdco or any
of Mr Li Ka-shing Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor and Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard as holder of

the shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid

As Mr Li Ka-shing may be regarded as founder of each of DT1 and D12 for the purpose of the SF0

and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor is discretionary beneficiary of each of DT1 and DT2 and by virtue of the

above both Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor are taken to have duty of disclosure in relation

to the shares of the Company held by TUT1 as trustee of Uli and TUT1 related companies under the

SF0 as Directors of the Company Although Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard interested in one-third of the entire

issued share capital of Unity Holdco and is discretionary beneficiary of each of Dli and DT2 he is not

Director of the Company and has no duty of disclosure in relation to the shares of the Company held

by TUT1 as trustee of UT1 and lUll related companies under the SEQ

The two references to 2141698773 shares in Hutchison Whampoa Limited HWL relate to the same

block of shares comprising

2130202773 shares held by certain subsidiaries of the Company By virtue of the interests in

shares of the Company in relation to which each of Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor

has duty of disclosure under the SF0 in the issued share capital of the Company as described in

Note above and as Director of the Company they are taken to have duty of disclosure in

relation to the said shares of HWL under the SF0 and

11496000 shares held by Li Ka-Shing Castle Trustee Company Limited TUT3 as trustee of The

Li Ka-Shing Castle Trust UT3 Mr Li Ka-shing is the settlor of each of the two discretionary

trusts 013 and DT4 Each of Li Ka-Shing Castle Trustee Corporation Limited 1013 which is

the trustee of DT3 and Li Ka-Shing Castle Trustcorp Limited TDT4 which is the trustee of DT4

holds units in UT3 but is not entitled to any interest or share in any particular property comprising

the trust assets of the said unit trust The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT3 and 014 are

inter alia Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor his wife and children and Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard
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The entire issued share capital of TUT3 and the trustees of DT3 and DT4 are owned by Li Ka-Shing

Castle Holdings Limited Castle Holdco Each of Mr Li Ka-shing Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor

and Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard is interested in one-third of the entire issued share capital of Castle

Holdco TUT3 is only interested in the shares of HWL by reason only of its obligation and power

to hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and when performing

its functions as trustee exercises its power to hold interests in the shares of HWL independently

without any reference to Castle Holdco or any of Mr Li Ka-shing Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor and

Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard as holder of the shares of Castle Holdco as aforesaid

As Mr Li Ka-shing may be regarded as founder of each of DT3 and DT4 for the purpose of the

SF0 and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor is discretionary beneficiary of each of DT3 and DT4 and by

virtue of the above both Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor are taken to have duty of

disclosure in relation to the said shares of HWL held by TUT3 as trustee of UT3 under the SF0 as

Directors of the Company Although Mr Li Tzar Kai Richard is interested in one-third of the entire

issued share capital of Castle Holdco and is discretionary beneficiary of each of DT3 and DT4 he

is not Director of the Company and has no duty of disclosure in relation to the shares of HWL

held by TUT3 as trustee of UT3 under the SF0

Such interests are held by certain companies of which Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor is interested in the entire

issued share capital

Such interests in the shares are held by company controlled by trust under which Mr George Cohn

Magnus is discretionary beneficiary

Such interests are indirectly held by trust of which Mr George Cohn Magnus is the settlor and

discretionary beneficiary

Such interests are held by company which is equally owned by Mr Fok Kin-ning Canning and his wife

Such interests are held by company which is wholly-owned by Mr Leung Siu Hon and his wife

The two references to 1912109945 shares in Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited CKI relate

to the same block of shares comprising

1906681945 shares held by subsidiary of HWL Certain subsidiaries of the Company hold more

than one-third of the issued share capital of HWL Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor

as Directors of the Company by virtue of their deemed interests in the shares of the Company as

described in Note above are taken to have duty of disclosure in relation to such shares of

CKI held by the subsidiary of HWL under the SF0 and

5428000 shares held by TUT1 as trustee of UT1 By virtue of the deemed interests in TUT1 as

trustee of UT1 as described in Note above each of Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor

is taken to have duty of disclosure in relation to such shares of CKI under the SF0
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10 The two references to 4355634570 shares in CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc CKLS relate

to the same block of shares which are held by subsidiary of the Company Mr Li Ka-shing and

Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor as Directors of the Company are taken to have duty of disclosure relation

to such shares of CKLS held by the subsidiary of the Company by virtue of their deemed interests in the

shares of the Company as described in Note above under the SF0

11 These are subsidiaries of the Company and such shares are held through the Company and TUT1 as

trustee of UT1 Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor as Directors of the Company by virtue of

their deemed interests in the shares of the Company and TUT1 as trustee of UT1 as described in Note

above are taken to have duty of disclosure in relation to such shares under the SF0

12 These shares are held by subsidiary of the Company By virtue of the deemed interests in the shares

of the Company as described in Note above and as Director of the Company Mr Li Ka-shing is

taken to have duty of disclosure in relation to such shares under the SF0

13 Such shares of Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited HIlL comprise

2957914840 ordinary shares of which 52092587 ordinary shares and 2905822253 ordinary

shares are held by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and HWL respectively By

virtue of the interests in the shares of the Company and HWL in relation to which Mr Li Ka-shing

and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor have duty of disclosure under the SF0 in the issued share capital of

each of the Company and HWL as described in Notes and above and as Directors of the

Company Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor are taken to have duty of disclosure in

relation to the said shares of HTIL under the SF0 and

153280 ordinary shares held by TUT3 as trustee of UT3 Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi

Victor as Directors of the Company by virtue of Mr Li Ka-shing may being regarded as founder

and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor as discretionary beneficiary of each of DT3 and DT4 and their deemed

interests in TUT3 as trustee of UT3 as described in Note 3b above are taken to have duty of

disclosure in relation to the said shares of HTIL under the SF0

14 Such shares of Hutchson Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited HTHKH comprise

3066084840 ordinary shares of which 52092587 ordinary shares and 3013992253 ordinary

shares are held by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and HWL respectively By

virtue of the interests in the shares of the Company and HWL in relation to which Mr Li Ka-shing

and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor have duty of disclosure under the SF0 in the issued share capital of

each of the Company and HWL as described in Notes and above and as Directors of the

Company Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor are taken to have duty of disclosure in

relation to the said shares of HTHKH under the SF0 and

153280 ordinary shares held by TUT3 as trustee of UT3 Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi

Victor as Directors of the Company by virtue of Mr Li Ka-shing may being regarded as founder

and Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor as discretionary beneficiary of each of DT3 and DT4 and their deemed

interests in TUT3 as trustee of UT3 as described in Note 3b above are taken to have duty of

disclosure in relation to the said shares of HTHKH under the SF0
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15 Such underlying shares are derived from the 17000 American Depositary Shares each representing

15 ordinary shares in each of HIlL and HTHKH beneficially owned by Mr Frank John Sixt

As at 31st December 2009 by virtue of their deemed interests in the shares of the Company as

described in Note above and as Directors of the Company Mr Li Ka-shing and Mr Li Tzar Kuol

Victor are deemed to be interested in the securities of the subsidiaries and associated companies

of the Company held through the Company under the provisions of the SF0

Certain Directors held qualifying shares in certain subsidiaries in trust for the Company and other

subsidiaries

Save as disclosed above none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had as at

31st December 2009 any interests or short positions in the shares underlying shares and debentures

of the Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SF0

which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions

and of Part XV of the SF0 including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed

to have under such provisions of the SF0 or which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SF0 or which were required to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

At no time during the year was the Company or subsidiary party to any arrangements which

enabled any Director to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of

the Company or of any other body corporate

No other contracts of significance to which the Company or subsidiary was party and in which

Director has material interest subsisted at the year end date or at any time during the year

None of the Directors has any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
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So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company as at 31st December 2009

shareholders other than Directors or chief executives of the Company who had interests or short

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company under the provisions of Divisions and of Part XV of the SF0 or which were recorded

in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SF0 were as follows

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares of the Company

Number of Approximate

Name of Shareholder Capacity Ordinary Shares of Shareholding

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited Trustee 857794744 37.04%

as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust Note

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited Trustee beneficiary 857794744 37.04%

as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity of trust Note

Discretionary Trust

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited Trustee beneficiary 857794744 37.04%

as trustee of another discretionary trust of trust Note

Note The three references to 857794744 shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company Each

of TUT1 as trustee of UT1 TDT1 as trustee of DT1 and TDT2 as trustee of another discretionary trust

is taken to have duty of disclosure in relation to the said shares of the Company as described in

Note under the section headed Directors Interests and Short Positions in Shares Underlying Shares

and Debentures under the SF0

Save as disclosed above as at 31st December 2009 the Company has not been notified by any

persons other than Directors or chief executives of the Company who had interests or short positions

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions and of Part XV of the SF0 or which were recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SF0
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The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing connected transactions Continuing

Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules during the financial year ended 31st December 2009

On 18th November 2008 the Company entered into tenancy agreement Tenancy

Agreement with Turbo Top Limited Turbo Top which is connected person of the

Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules by virtue of it being wholly-owned

subsidiary of HWL which in turn is substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the

Company in respect of the renewal of the lease of the whole of 7th 8th 9th 10th and

11th Floors and Office Unit 1201 on 12th Floor of Cheung Kong Center Queens Road

Central Hong Kong with an aggregate lettable floor area of approximately 110864 square

feet as the headquarters and office premises of the Group in Hong Kong for term of three

years commencing from 1st September 2008 to 31st August 2011 both days inclusive The

aggregate rent and service charges payable under the Tenancy Agreement are subject to

the proposed annual caps of HK$40000000 for the period from 1st September 2008 to

31st December 2008 HK$121000000 for the year ended 31st December 2009
HK$122000000 for the year ending 31st December 2010 and HK$82000000 for the period

from 1st January 2011 to 31st August 2011 which were calculated with reference to the

monthly rent of HK$8869120 exclusive of Government rates and other charges and monthly

service charges of HK$942344 subject to adjustment by Turbo Top During the year rent

and service charges amounting to HK$1 17737568 was payable by the Company to Turbo Top

pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement

On 17th April 2009 the Company entered into master agreement Master Agreement

with HTHKH which is connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing

Rules by virtue of it being subsidiary of HWL which in turn is substantial shareholder

of certain subsidiaries of the Company pursuant to which the Company will procure its

subsidiaries to provide CKH Group Supplies or acquire HTHKH Group Supplies both as defined

and more particularly described in the announcement of the Company dated 20th April 2009

Announcement II as appropriate and HTHKH will procure its subsidiaries to provide HTHKH

Group Supplies or acquire CKH Group Supplies as appropriate on non-exclusive basis during

the term of the Master Agreement In respect of such other entities in which the Company

or HTHKH as the case may be is from time to time directly or indirectly interested so as to

exercise or control the exercise of 50% of voting power at general meetings or of the equity

interests in such entities the Company or HTHKH as the case may be shall use all commercially

reasonable endeavours to procure them to provide or acquire as appropriate the CKH Group

Supplies and HTHKH Group Supplies as the case may be The term of the Master Agreement

is for period of three years commencing from 8th May 2009 unless terminated earlier in

accordance with the Master Agreement Pursuant to the Master Agreement the Company and

HTHKH agree that the subsidiaries of the Company and subsidiaries of HTHKH shall enter into

separate contracts in respect of the CKH Group Supplies or HTHKH Group Supplies as the

case may be in form and on terms to be agreed between the relevant parties from time to

time
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The aggregate fees and charges payable under the Master Agreement for the Groups acquisition

of the HTHKH Group Supplies for each of the three years ended/ending 31st December 2009

31st December 2010 31st December 2011 and the period ending 7th May 2012 will be

subject to the proposed annual caps of HK$35 million HK$24 million HK$25 million and

HK$10 million respectively The aggregate fees and charges payable under the Master Agreement

for the Groups provision of the CKH Group Supplies for each of the three years ended/ending

31st December 2009 31st December 2010 31st December 2011 and the period ending

7th May 2012 will be subject to the proposed annual caps of HK$17 million HK$18 million

HK$21 million and HK$10 million respectively For the period from 8th May 2009 to

31st December 2009 approximately HK$15 million was payable by the Company in respect

of the Groups acquisition of the HTHKH Group Supplies and approximately HK$7 million was

payable to the Company in respect of the Groups provision of the CKH Group Supplies

An announcement Announcement in respect of the above transaction in paragraph was

published on 18th November 2008 in accordance with the Listing Rules Announcement II in respect

of the above transactions in paragraph was published on 20th April 2009 in accordance with

the Listing Rules

The Continuing Connected Transactions have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company who have confirmed that for the
year

2009 the Continuing Connected

Transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company

either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms

available to or from independent third parties and Hi in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as whole

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules the Company has engaged the auditor of the Company

to perform certain factual finding procedures in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions

in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 Engagements to Perform

Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to

the Board of Directors and confirmed that for the year
2009 the Continuing Connected Transactions

have received approval of the Board of Directors of the Company are in accordance with the

pricing policies of the Company where applicable iH have been entered into in accordance with

the terms of the agreements governing the transactions and iv have not exceeded the respective

cap amounts for the financial year
ended 31st December 2009 as set out in Announcement and

Announcement II respectively

During the year 48% of the Groups purchases were attributable to the Groups five largest suppliers

with the largest supplier accounting for 16% of the Groups purchases The Groups turnover

attributable to the Groups five largest customers was less than 30%

None of the Directors their associates or any shareholder which to the knowledge of the Directors

owns more than 5% of the Companys issued share capital has any interest in the Groups five

largest suppliers
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During the year the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete

either directly or indirectly with the businesses of the Group Competing Business as required

to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows

Core Business Activities of the Group

Property development and investment

Hotel and serviced suite operation

Property and project management

Investment in securities

Information technology e-commerce and new technology

Interests in Competing Business

Competing Business

Name of Director Name of Company Nature of Interest Note

Li Ka-shing Hutchison Whampoa Lmited Chairman

Li Tzar Kuoi Victor Hutchison Whampoa Limited Deputy Chairman

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Chairman

Holdings Limited

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited Executive Director

CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc Chairman

Kam Hing Lam Hutchison Whampoa Limited Executive Director

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Group Managing Director

Holdings Limited

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited Executive Director

CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc President and

Chief Executive Officer

Tak Chuen Edmond Cheung Kong Infrastructure Executive Director and

Holdings Limited Deputy Chairman

CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc Senior Vice President and

Chief Investment Officer

TOM Group Limited Non-executive Director

ARA Asset Management Limited Non-executive Director

ARA Asset Management Fortune Limited Director

formerly known as ARA Asset

Management Singapore Limited

ARA Trust Management Suntec Limited Director

AVIC International Holding HK Limited Non-executive Director

formerly known as CA TIC

International Holdings Limited

Excel Technology International Non-executive Director

Holdings Limited

Shougang Concord International Non-executive Director

Enterprises Company Limited

The Ming An Holdings Company Limited Non-executive Director

whose shares were withdrawn resigned on

from
listing on 2nd November 2009 27th NovembeC 2009
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Competing Business

Name of Director Name of Company Nature of Interest Note

Chiu Kwok Hung Justin ARA Asset Management Limited Chairman

ARA Asset Management Fortune Limited Chairman

formerly known as ARA Asset

Management Singapore Limited

ARA Trust Management Suntec Limited Chairman

ARA Asian Dragon Limited Chairman

Al Islami Far Eastern Real Estate Chairman

Fund Limited

ARA Asset Management Chairman

Prosperity Limited

Leung Siu Hon Rich Surplus Limited Director and

Substantial Shareholder

Rich More Enterprises Limited Director and

Substantial Shareholder

Fok Kin-ning Canning Hutchison Whampoa Limited Group Managing Director

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Deputy Chairman

Holdings Limited

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited Chairman

Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited Chairman

Hutchison Telecommunications Chairman

International Limited

Hutchison Telecommunications Chairman

Hong Kong Holdings Limited

Frank John Sixt Hutchison Whampoa Limited Group Finance Director

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Executive Director

Holdings Limited

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited Executive Director

TOM Group Limited Non-executive Chairman

Hutchison Telecommunications Non-executive Director

International Limited

Hutchison Telecommunications Non-executive Director

Hong Kong Holdings Limited

George Cohn Magnus Hutchison Whampoa Limited Non-executive Director

Cheung Kong Infrastructure Non-executive Director

Holdings Limited

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited Non-executive Director

Note Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries associated companies or by way of other forms

of investments

Save as disclosed above none of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the Groups

businesses which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with businesses of

the Group
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During the year ended 31st December 2009 neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased sold or redeemed any of the Companys listed securities

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors

as at the date of this annual report the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under

the Listing Rules

During the year the Group supported wide variety of charitable activities of the community Donations

of approximately HK$3100000 were made by the Group to various charitable organisations

The Groups annual report for the year ended 31st December 2009 has been reviewed by the

audit committee the Audit Committee Information on the work of Audit Committee and its

composition are set out in the Code Provision C.3 of the Corporate Governance Report on pages

64 to 66

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who

retire and offer themselves for re-appointment

On behalf of the Board

Li Ka-shing

Chairman

Hong Kong 30th March 2010
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The Board of Directors Board and the management of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance

practices and procedures The Company believes that good corporate governance provides framework that is essential for effective management

healthy corporate culture successful business growth and enhancing shareholders value The corporate governance principles of the Company

emphasise quality Board sound internal controls and transparency and accountability to all shareholders The Company has applied the

principles and complied with all code provisions and where applicable the recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices Code on CG Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited Stock Exchange Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December 2009

Key corporate governance principles and corporate governance practices of the Company are summarised below

Code Provisions

Code Ref Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices

DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for directing and

supervising the Companys affairs

A.1 .1 Regular board meetings should The Board meets regularly and held meetings in March May August and

be held at least four times year November 2009

involving active participation

either in person or through
Details of Directors attendance records in 2009

other electronic means of Members of the Board Attendance
communication of majority of _________________________________

directors
Executive Directors

LI Ka-shing Chairman 4/4

LI Tzar Kuoi Victor Managing Director and Deputy Chairman 4/4

KAM Hing Lam 4/4

IP Tak Chuen Edmond 4/4

HUNG Sun Keung Davy 4/4

PAU Yee Wan Ezra 4/4

WOO Chia Ching Grace 4/4

CHIU Kwok Hung Justin 4/4

Non-executive Directors

LEUNG Siu Hon 4/4

FOK Kin-ning Canning 4/4

Frank John SIXT 4/4

CHOW Kun Chee Roland 4/4

George Cohn MAGNUS 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

KWOK Tun-li Stanley 4/4

YEH Yuan Chang Anthony 4/4

Simon MURRAY 4/4

CHOW Nm Mow Albert 3/4

HUNG Siu-lin Katherine 4/4

WONG Yick-ming Rosanna 4/4

CHEONG Ying Chew Henry 4/4

KWAN Chiu Yin Robert 0/3

Passed away on 6th October 2009

The Directors may attend meetings in person by phone or through other means

of electronic communication or by their alternate directors in accordance with the

Companys Articles of Association

A.1 .2 All directors are given an All Directors are consulted as to whether they may want to include any matter in

opportunity to include matters in the the agenda before the agenda for each regLilar Board meeting is issued

agenda for regular board meetings

A.1 .3 At least 14 days notice for Regular Board meetings in particular year are usually scheduled towards the end

regular board meetings of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their

schedules to attend the meetings
Reasonable notice for other

board meetings At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular meeting

According to the Companys Articles of Association Director may waive notice of

any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or retrospective
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Code Ref Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices

A.1 .4 All directors should have access Directors have access to the Company Secretary and key officers of the Company

to the advice and services of the Secretarial Department who are responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board

company secretary with view to procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed

ensuring that board procedures

and all applicable rules and
Memos are issued to Directors from time to time to update them with

legal
and

regulations are followed regulatory changes and matters of relevance to Directors in the discharge of their

duties

A.1 .5 Minutes of board meetings The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of

and meetings of board matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee meetings

committees should be kept by

duly appointed secretary of
Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all Directors/Board

the meeting
Committee members within reasonable time generally within 14 days after each

Board and Board Committee meeting

Such minutes should be

open for inspection at any

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are available for inspection by

reasonable time on reasonable
Directors/Board Committee members

notice by any director

A.1 .6 Minutes of board meetings Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board

and meetings of board Committees and decisions reached

committees should record in

sufficient detail the matters
Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board minutes

considered by the board and
Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within reasonable time after the

decisions reached
Board meeting

Draft and final versions of board

minutes for all directors to

comment and to keep records

within reasonable time after

the board meeting

A.1 .7 procedure agreed by the Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange independent

board to enable directors professional advice at the expense of the Company should such advice be

upon reasonable request to considered necessary by any Director

seek independent professional

advice in appropriate

circumstances at the

companys expense

The board should resolve to

provide separate independent

professional advice to

directors to assist the relevant

director or directors to

discharge his/their duties to

the company

A.1.8 If substantial shareholder or Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions so that all

director has conflict of interest Directors including Independent Non-executive Directors can note and comment

in matter to be considered by as appropriate the matters before approval is granted

the board which the board has

determined to be material the
Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the resolution

matter should not be dealt with
if applicable

by way of circulation or by If substantial shareholder or Director has conflict of interest in matter to

committee but board meeting be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material the

should be held
matter will be dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and

Independent non-executive
if appropriate an independent Board committee will be set up to deal with the

directors who and whose
matter

associates have no material

interest in the transaction

should be present at such

board meeting
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Code Ref Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be c/ear div/s/on of
responsibilities

between the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company to ensure

balance of power and authority

A.2.1 Separate roles of chairman The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are currently

and chief executive officer not held by separate individuals

to be performed by the same

individual
The Chairman determines the broad strategic direction of the Group in consultation

with the Board and is responsible for the high-level oversight of management
Division of responsibilities

between the chairman and
The Managing Director with the support of the Executive Directors is responsible

chief executive officer should
for strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day management

be clearly established and set
and operation of the Group

out in writing

A.2.2 The chairman should ensure that With the support of the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary the

all directors are properly briefed on Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at

issues arising at board meetings Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information on timely basis

In addition to regular Board meetings the Chairman had meetings with the

Non-executive Directors including the Independent Non-executive Directors without

the presence of the Executive Directors in May and November 2D09 Details of the

attendance records of the meetings are as follows

Attendance

Chairman

LI Ka-shing 2/2

Non-executive Directors

LEUNG Siu Hon 2/2

FOK Kin-ning Canning 2/2

Frank John SIXT 2/2

CHOW Kun Chee Roland 2/2

George Cohn MAGNUS 2/2

Independent Non-executive Directors

KWOK Tun-li Stanley 2/2

YEH Yuan Chang Anthony 2/2

Simon MURRAY 2/2

CHOW Nm Mow Albert 1/2

HUNG Siu-lin Katherine 2/2

WONG Yick-ming Rosanna 2/2

CHEONG Ying Chew Henry 2/2

KWAN Chiu Yin Robert D/1

Note The Chairman and the Non-executive Directors including the independent Non-executive

Directors may attend meetings in person by phone or through other means of electronic

communication or by their aiternale directors in accordance with the Companys Articles

of Association

Passed away on 6th October 2009

A.2.3 The chairman should be responsible The Board papers including supporting analysis and related background information

for ensuring that directors receive are normally sent to the Directors at least three days before Board meetings

adequate information which must

be complete and reliable in timely
Communications between Non-executive Directors including Independent

manner
Non-executive Directors on the one hand and the Company Secretary as

co-ordinator for the other business units of the Group on the other is dynamic

and interactive process to ensure that queries raised and clarification sought by the

Directors are dealt with and further supporting information and/or documentation

is provided if appropriate
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A.3 Board composition

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should have balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company and should

include balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised

A.3.1 Independent non-executive The composition of the Board by category and position of Directors including

directors should be expressly the names of the Chairman the Executive Directors the Non-executive Directors

identified as such in all corporate and the Independent Non-executive Directors is disclosed in all corporate

communications that disclose the communications

names of directors of the company
The Board consists of total of twenty Directors comprising eight Executive

Directors five Non-executive Directors and seven Independent Non-executive

Directors More than one-third of the Board are Independent Non-executive

Directors of which more than one have appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise

Details of the composition of the Board are set out on page 140

The Directors biographical information and the relationships among the Directors

are set out on pages 24 to 27

Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it has balance

of expertise skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business

of the Company

A.4 Appointments re-election and removal

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be format considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for orderly

succession for appointments to the Board All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals

A.4.1 Non-executive directors should All Directors including Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by

be appointed for
specific term rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election in accordance with the

subject to re-election Companys Articles of Association and the Code on CG Practices

A.4.2 All directors appointed to In accordance with the Companys Articles of Association newly appointed
fill casual vacancy should Directors are required to offer themselves for re-election at the next following

be subject to election by general meeting in the case of
filling casual vacancy or at the next following

shareholders at the first annual general meeting in the case of an addition to the Board following ther

general meeting after their appointment

appointment
The Board as whole is responsible for the appointment of new Directors and

Every director including Directors nomination for re-election by shareholders at the general meeting of

those appointed for specific the Company Under the Companys Articles of Association the Board may from

term should be subject to time to time appoint Director either to fill casual vacancy or as an addition to

retirement by rotation at least the Board Any such new Director shall hold office until the next following general

once every three years meeting of the Company in the case of filling casual vacancy or until the next

following annual general meeting of the Company in the case of an addition to the

Board and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting

All Directors including Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by

rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election in accordance with the

Companys Articles of Association and the Code on CG Practices

The structure size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time to

ensure the Board has balanced composition of skills and experience appropriate

for the requirements of the businesses of the Company The independence of the

Independent Non-executive Directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and

requirements under the Listing Rules

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors makes an annual confirmation of

independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules The Company is

of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence

guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and are

independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines
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Code Ref Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices

A.5 Responsibilities of directors

Corporate Governance Principle

Every Director is required to keep abreast of responsibilities as Director of the Company and of the con duch business activities and

development of the Company

A.5.1 Every newly appointed The Company Secretary and key officers of the Company Secretarial Department
director of the company liaise closely with newly appointed Directors both immediately before and after

should receive his/her appointment to acquaint the newly appointed Directors with the duties and

comprehensive formal and responsibilities as Director of the Company and the business operation of the

tailored induction on the first Company
occasion of his appointment

and subsequently such package compiled and reviewed by the Companys legal advisers setting out

briefing and professional
such duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules Companies Ordinance

development as is necessary
and other related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong

is provided to each newly appointed Director revised information package
To ensure that he has comprising the latest developments in laws rules and regulations relating to the

proper understanding of the duties and responsibilities of directors will be forwarded to each Director from time

operations and business of the to time for his/her information and ready reference Guide on Directors Duties

company and that he is fully previously known as Non-statutory Guidelines on Directors Duties issued by the

aware of his responsibilities Companies Registry of Hong Kong has been forwarded to each Director for his/her

under statute and common information and ready reference

law the Listing Rules

applicable legal requirements
Memos are issued from time to time to keep Directors up to date with legal and

and other regulatory
regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of

requirements and the business
their duties

and governance policies
of the

Seminars are organised from time to time at which distinguished professionals

company are invited to present to the Directors on subjects relating
to directors duties and

corporate governance etc

A.5.2 The functions of non-executive The Non-executive Directors exercise their independent judgement and advise on

directors include the future business direction and strategic plans of the Company

bring independent judgement The Non-executive Directors review the financial information and operational

on issues of strategy policy performance of the Company on regular basis

performance accountability

resources key appointments
The Independent Non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit and

and standards of conduct at
Remuneration Committees of the Company

board meetings

take the lead on potential

conflicts of interests

serve on the audit

remuneration nomination and

other governance committees

if invited

scrutinise the companys

performance in achieving

agreed corporate goals and

objectives and monitoring the

reporting of performance

A.5.3 Every director should ensure that There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year Please refer to

he can give sufficient time and A.1 .1 of Part above for details of attendance records

attention to the affairs of the

company and should not accept the
Every Executive Director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas and

appointment if he cannot do so operation in which he/she is charged with Appropriate attention to the affairs of

the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality of such attention

and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to his/her necessary

knowledge and expertise

A.5.4 Directors must comply with The Company had adopted the model code for securities transactions by directors of

the Model Code listed issuers Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code

of conduct regarding Directors securities transactions effective from 31st March 2004
Board should establish written

revised Model Code has been adopted by the Company to comply with the new
guidelines on no less exacting

requirements set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules effective from 1st April 2009
terms than the Model Code

for relevant employees Confirmation has been received from all Directors that they have complied with the

required standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 1st December 2009

Written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code
relating

to securities

transactions for employees are set out in the Employee Handbook of the Company
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A.6 Supply of and access to information

Corporate Governance Principle

Directors should be provided in timely manner with appropriate information in such form and of such quality as will enable them

to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company

A.6.1 Send agenda and full board Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three days before the

papers to all directors at least regular Board/Board Committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board Committee

days before regular board or members to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board

board committee meeting Committee meetings

So far as practicable for other

board or board committee

meetings

A.6.2 Management has an The Company Secretary and the Chief Manager of the Accounts Department attend

obligation to supply the board all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate governance statutory compliance

and its committees with and accounting and financial matters as appropriate

adequate information in

timely manner to enable it to
Communications between Directors on the one hand and the Company Secretary

make informed decisions
who acts as co-ordinator for the other business units of the Group on the other

is dynamic and interactive process to ensure that queries raised and clarification

The board and each director sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further supporting information is

should have separate provided if appropriate

and independent access

to the companys senior

management for making

further enquiries where

necessary

A.6.3 All directors are entitled to Please see A.6.1 and A.6.2 of Part above

have access to board papers

and related materials

Steps must be taken to

respond as promptly and fully

as possible to queries raised by

directors

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be formal and transparent procedure for setting policy on Executive Directors remuneration and for fixing the

remuneration packages for all Directors

B.1 .1 Establish remuneration In accordance with the Code on CG Practices the Company has set up

committee with specific written remuneration committee Remuneration Committee with majority of the

terms of reference comprising members being Independent Non-executive Directors

majority of independent

non-executive directors
The Company established its Remuneration Committee on 1st January 2005

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board

Mr Li Ka-shing Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and two

Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr Kwok Tun-li Stanley and

Dr Wong Yick-ming Rosanna

Since the publication of the Companys 2008 annual report in April 2009 meetings

of the Remuneration Committee were held in November and December 2009

Details of the attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee

are as follows

Members of the Remuneration Committee Attendance

LI Ka-shing Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 2/2

KWOK Tun-li Stanley 2/2

WONG Yick-ming Rosanna 2/2

Note The members of the Remuneration Committee may attend meetings in person by phone or

through other means of electronic communication or by their alternates in accordance with the

Companys Articles of Association
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B.1 .1 The following is summary of the work for the Remuneration Committee during

contd the said meetings

Review of the remuneration policy for 2009/2010

Review of the remuneration of Non-executive Directors

Review of the annual performance bonus policy and

Approval of remuneration packages of Executive Directors

B.1.2 The remuneration committee The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman and/or the Managing

should consult the chairman Director about proposals relating
to the remuneration packages and other human

and/or chief executive officer about resources issues of the Directors and senior management including without

their proposals relating to the limitation succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies
for

remuneration of other executive recruiting and retaining qualified personnel

directors and have access to

professional advice if considered
The emoluments of Directors are based on the skill knowledge involvement in the

necessary
Companys affairs and the performance of each Director together with reference

to the
profitability

of the Company remuneration benchmarks in the industry and

prevailing market conditions

To enable them to better advise on the Groups future remuneration policy and

related strategies the Remuneration Committee has been advised of the Groups

existing remuneration policy and succession plan such as guidelines on designing

employees remuneration packages and related market trends and information

1.3 Terms of reference of the The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which follow
closely the

remuneration committee should requirements of the Code Provisions and have been adopted by the Board are

include posted on the Companys website

determine the
specific

remuneration packages of all

executive directors and senior

management

review and approve

performance-based

remuneration and the

compensation payable on loss

or termination of office or

appointment

ensure that no director

or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own

remuneration

B.1.4 The remuneration committee The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the

should make available its terms of Companys website

reference explaining its role and

the authority delegated to it by the
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making

board
recommendations to the Board on the Companys policy and structure for the

remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific

remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior management by

reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time

B.1 .5 The remuneration committee The Human Resources Department provides administrative support and implements

should be provided with sufficient the approved remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions

resources to discharge its duties approved by the Remuneration Committee

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial reporting

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should present ba/anced c/ear and comprehensible assessment of the Companys performance position and prospects

C.1 .1 Management should provide such Directors are provided with review of the Groups major business activities and key

explanation and information to the financial information on quarterly basis

board as will enable the board to

make an informed assessment of

the financial and other information

put before the board for approval
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C.1 .2 The directors should The Directors annually acknowledge in writing their responsibility for preparing the

acknowledge in the Corporate financial statements of the Group

Governance Report their

responsibility
for preparing the

Directors are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt upon the Companys ability to continue as goingaccounts
concern as referred to in C.1 .2 of the Code on CG Practices

There should be statement

With the assistance of the Companys Accounts Department which is under the
by the auditors about their

reporting responsibilities in
supervision of the Chief Manager who is professional accountant the Directors

the auditors report on the
ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the Group are in accordance

financial statements
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards

Unless it is inappropriate to
The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements of the Group

assume that the company
is in timely manner

will continue in business The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding its reporting responsibilities

the directors should prepare on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors

the accounts on going
Report on page 33

concern basis with supporting

assumptions or qualifications

as necessary

When the directors are aware N/A

of material uncertainties

relating to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt

upon the companys ability to

continue as going concern

such uncertainties should be

clearly
and prominently set out

and discussed at length in the

Corporate Governance Report

C.1 .3 The boards responsibility to The Board aims to present clear balanced and understandable assessment of the

present balanced clear and Groups performance and position in all shareholder communications

understandable assessment

extends to annual and interim
The Board is aware of the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations

reports other price-sensitive
about timely disclosure of price-sensitive information or matters regarding the

announcements and other financial
Company and will authorise the publication of such announcements as and when

disclosures required under the
the occasion arises The Company Secretary and key officers of the Company

Listing Rules and reports to
Secretarial Department work closely and in consultation with legal advisers to

regulators as well as to information
review the materiality and sensitivity of transactions and proposed transactions and

required to be disclosed pursuant
advise the Board accordingly

to statutory requirements

C.2 Internal controls

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should ensure that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders investment

and the Companys assets

C.2.1 Directors to review the The Board has overall
responsibility

for maintaining sound and effective internal

effectiveness of system control system of the Group The Groups system of internal control includes

of internal control of the defined management structure with limits of authority is designed to help the

company and its subsidiaries achievement of business objectives safeguard assets against unauthorised use or

at least annually and to report disposition ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision

that they have done so in the of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication and ensure

Corporate Governance Report compliance with relevant legislation and regulations The system is designed to

provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

The review should cover all loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

material controls including achievement of the Groups objectives

financial operational and

compliance controls and risk
Internal Control Environment

management functions An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures lines of

responsibility and delegated authority has been established

The relevant Executive Directors and senior management are delegated with

respective levels of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and policy

and contractual commitments

Operational budgets are prepared by operational departments and reviewed by

the responsible Directors prior to being adopted There are procedures for the

appraisal review and approval of major capital
and recurrent expenditure Results

of operations against budgets are reported regularly to the Executive Directors
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C.2.1 Proper controls are in place for the recording of complete accurate and timely

contd accounting and management information Regular reviews and audits are

carried out to ensure that the preparation of financial statements is carried

out in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles the Groups

accounting policies and applicable laws and regulations

The Internal Control Self Assessment process is established that requires the

senior management in each material business unit to annually assess the

effectiveness of controls over the
reliability

of financial reporting effectiveness

and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations

and the related risks

The Internal Audit Department provides an independent appraisal of the Groups

financial and operational activities and makes constructive recommendations to

the relevant management for necessary actions

The Internal Audit Department carries oLit annual risk assessment on each audit

area and derives yearly audit plan according to their risk ratings The audit

plan is reviewed and endorsed by the audit committee of the Company Audit

Committee In addition to its agreed schedule of work the Internal Audit

Department conducts other review and investigative work as may be required

The results of internal audit reviews and agreed action plans in response to the

Internal Audit Departments recommendations are reported to the Executive

Directors and Audit Committee periodically The Internal Audit Department

also follows up the corrective actions to ensure that satisfactory controls are

maintained

Reports from the external auditor Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Deloitte on internal controls and relevant financial reporting matters are

presented to the Audit Committee and management

The Board through the Audit Committee has conducted an annual review of the

effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries

and considers it is adequate and effective The review covers all material controls

including financial operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which may

affect the shareholders The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied with

the code provisions on internal controls as set forth in the Code on CG Practices

C.2.2 The boards annual review The Board through the Audit Committee and with the appraisal performed by

should in particular consider the Internal Audit Department reviewed the adequacy of resources qualifications

the adequacy of resources and experience of staff of the Companys accounting and financial reporting

qualifications and experience of function and their training programmes and budget at the Board meeting held

staff of the companys accounting in March 2D1 and noted that the Company has been in compliance with the Code

and financial reporting function Provision for the year 2D09 Please also refer to C.3.3 of Part

and their training programmes and

budget

C.3 Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal

control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Companys auditors

C.3.1 Full minutes of audit Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the Audit

committee meetings should Committee within reasonable time after each meeting

be kept by duly appointed

secretary of the meeting
Audit Committee meetings were held in March and August 2D09 Details of the

attendance records of members of the Audit Committee are as follows

Draft and final versions of

minutes for all members of the
Members of the Audit Committee Attendance

audit committee to comment CHEONG Ying Chew Henry Chairman of theAudit Committee 2/2

and to keep records within KWOK Tun-li Stanley 2/2

reasonable time after the HUNG Siu-lin Katherine 2/2

meeting

Note The members of the Audit committee may atterro meetings in person by phone or through

other means of electronic communication or by their alternates in accordance with the

Companys Articles of Association
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C.3.1 The following is summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2009

contd
Review of the financial reports for 2008 annual results and 2009 interim

results

Review of the findings and recommendations of the Internal Audit Department

on the work of various departments and related companies

Review of the effectiveness of the internal control system

Review of the external auditors audit findings

Review of the auditors remuneration

Review of risks of different business units and analysis thereof provided by the

relevant business units and

Review of the control mechanisms for such risks and advising on action plans for

improvement of the situations

After due and careful consideration of reports from management and the internal

and external auditors the Audit Committee was of the view that no suspected fraud

or irregularities significant internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement

of laws rules or regulations had been found and concluded at the meeting held on

26th March 2010 that the system of internal controls was adequate and effective

On 26th March 2010 the Audit Committee met to review the Groups 2009

consolidated financial statements including the accounting principles and practices

adopted by the Group in conjunction with the Companys external auditor

After review and discussions with the management internal auditor and external

auditor the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by the

Company and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured itself that

the disclosure of the financial information in the 2009 Annual Report complied

with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules The

Audit Committee therefore recommended the Boards approval of the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2009

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of

Deloitte as the Companys external auditor for 2010 and that the related resolution

shall be put forth for shareholders consideration and approval at the 2010 annual

general meeting

The Groups Annual Report for the year ended 31st December 2009 has been

reviewed by the Audit Committee

C.3.2 former partner of existing No member of the Audit Committee is former partner of the existing auditing

auditing firm shall not act as firm of the Company during the one year after he/she ceases to be partner of the

member of the committee for auditing firm

year after he ceases to be partner

of or to have any financial interest

in the firm whichever is the later

C.3.3 Terms of reference of the audit The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which follow closely the

committee should include requirements of the Code Provisions and have been modified from time to time and

adopted by the Board are posted on the Companys website
recommendation to the board

on the appointment and

removal of external auditor

and approval of their terms of

engagement

review and monitor external

auditors independence and

effectiveness of audit process

review of financial information

of the company

oversight of the companys

financial reporting system and

internal control procedures

including the adequacy of

resources qualifications and

experience of staff of the

companys accounting and

financial reporting function

and their training programmes
and budget
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C.3.4 The audit committee should make The Listing Rules require every listed issuer to establish an audit committee

available its terms of reference comprising at least three members who must be non-executive directors only and

explaining its role and the authority the majority thereof must be independent non-executive directors at least one of

delegated to it by the board whom must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise The Company established the Audit Committee

in December 1998 with reference to Guide for the Formation of an Audit

Committee issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

In accordance with the requirements of the Code on CG Practices the terms

of reference of the Audit Committee were revised from time to time in terms

substantially the same as the provisions set out in the Code on CG Practices The

latest version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the

Companys website

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of

the Groups financial reporting system and internal control procedures review of

the Groups financial information and review of the relationship with the external

auditor of the Company Regular meetings have been held by the Audit Committee

since its establishment

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors

namely Mr Cheong Ying Chew Henry Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mr Kwok Tun-li Stanley and Ms Hung Siu-lin Katherine held two meetings during

the year

C.3.5 Where the board disagrees with N/A The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that subject to shareholders

the audit committees view on approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting Deloitte be re-appointed as

the selection appointment the Companys external auditor for 2010

resignation or dismissal of the

external auditors the company
For the year ended 31st December 2009 the external auditor of the Company

should include in the Corporate
received approximately HK$6 million for audit services and HK$1 million for tax and

Governance Report statement
other services

from the audit committee

explaining its recommendation and

also the reasons why the board

has taken different view

C.3.6 The audit committee should be The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange

provided with sufficient resources independent professional advice at the expense of the Company should the seeking

to discharge its duties of such advice be considered necessary by the Audit Committee

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management functions

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should have formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board and those delegated to management

0.1.1 When the board delegates Executive Directors are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in

aspects of its management and accordance with their respective areas of expertise

administration functions to

management it must at the same
Please refer to the Management Structure Chart set out on page 79

time give clear directions as to For matters or transactions of material natLire the same will be referred to the Board

the powers of management in
for approval

particular with respect to the

circumstances where management
For matters or transactions of magnitude requiring disclosure under the Listing

should report back and obtain prior
Rules or other applicable rules or regulations appropriate disclosure will be made and

approval from the board before where necessary circular will be prepared and shareholders approval will be obtained

making decisions or entering into in accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and regulations

any commitments on behalf of the

company

0.1.2 Formalise functions reserved to The Board led by the Chairman is responsible for the Groups future development

the board and those delegated directions overall strategies and policies evaluation of the performance of the

to management and to review Group and the management and approval ot matters that are of material or

those arrangements on periodic substantial nature

basis to ensure that they remain

appropriate to the needs of the
Under the leadership of the Managing Director management is responsible for the

company
day-to-day operations of the Group
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D.2 Board Committees

Corporate Governance Principle

Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees authority and

duties

D.2.1 Where board committees are Two Board Committees namely Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

established to deal with matters have been established with specific terms of reference as mentioned in C.3.3 and

the board should prescribe .3 of Part above

sufficiently clear terms of reference

to enable such committees to

discharge their functions properly

D.2.2 The terms of reference of board Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at

committees should require such the Board meetings

committees to report back to

the board on their decisions or

recommendations unless there

are legal or regulatory restrictions

on their ability to do so such as

restriction on disclosure due to

regulatory requirements

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular use annual general meetings or

other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation

.1 In respect of each substantially Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the Company on each

separate issue at general meeting substantially separate issue including the election of individual directors

separate resolution should be

proposed by the chairman of that

meeting

E.1 .2 The chairman of the board In 2009 the Chairman of the Board Chairman of the Audit Committee and

should attend the annual Chairman of the Remuneration Committee attended the annual general meeting

general meeting and arrange and were available to answer questions

for the chairmen of the audit

remuneration and nomination
The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders and

committees as appropriate or
investors including printed copies of corporate communications including but

in the absence of the chairman
not limited to annual reports interim reports notices of meetings circulars and

of such committees another proxy forms required under the Listing Rules and shareholders can select to receive

member of the committee
such documents by electronic means ii the annual general meeting provides

to be available to answer
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board

questions at the annual
iv updated and key information on the Group is available on the website of the

general meeting
Company iv the Companys website offers communication channel between the

Company and its shareholders and stakeholders regular press conferences and

The chairman of the
briefing meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time to update interested

independent board committee parties on the performance of the Group vi the Companys Registrar deal with

if any should also be available shareholders for share registration and related matters and va Corporate Affairs

to answer questions at any Department of the Company handles enquiries from shareholders and investors

general meeting to approve generally

connected transaction or

any other transaction that

is subject to independent

shareholders approval

1.3 The company should arrange for The Companys notice to shareholders for the 2009 annual general meeting of the

the notice to shareholders to be Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting

sent in the case of annual general

meeting at least 20 clear business

days before the meeting and to

be sent at least 10 clear business

days in the case of all other general

meetings
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E.2 Voting by poii

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting poll

E.2.1 The chairman of meeting should At the 2009 annual general meeting the Chairman of the meeting explained

at the commencement of the the detailed procedures for conducting poll and answered questions from

meeting ensure that an explanation shareholders

is provided of the detailed

procedures for conducting
At the 2009 annual general meeting the Chairman of the meeting exercised his

and then answer any questions
power under the Articles of Association of the Company to put each resolution set

from shareholders regarding voting
out in the notice to be voted by way of poll

by way of poll
Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as

scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at the annual general meeting

Since the Companys 2003 annual general meeting all the resolutions put to vote

at the Companys general meetings were taken by poll

Poll results were announced at the adjourned meeting and were posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
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Best Practice Ref Best Practices Eoplain

DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for directing and

supervising the Companys affairs

1.9 Arrange appropriate insurance The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers liability insurance

cover in respect of legal action coverage for its Directors and officers since 1st July 1991 including the year

against the directors 2009/2010

A.1.10 Board committees should adopt

so far as practicable the principles

procedures and arrangements set

out in A.1.1 toA.1.8

A.1.2

All directors are given an

opportunity to include matters

in the agenda for regular board

meetings

The Company has an Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

Based on available data and information the Company is not satisfied that quarterly

review by the Audit Committee would bring meaningful benefit to the shareholders

Meetings between the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors including the

Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of Executive Directors

were held two times year at which ample opportunity was provided for reflection of

their views and comments to the Board

Apart from the Audit Committee the Company has Remuneration Committee The

principal responsibility
of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations

to the Board on the Companys policy
and structure for the remuneration of its

Directors and senior management which in line with normal market practice

are only subject to review on an annual basis It is therefore not necessary for the

Remuneration Committee to have four meetings year as recommended

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in respect of the year of 2009 The

meeting held in November 2009 was to provide the Remuneration Committee with

an overview of the job market conditions and trends for the year and the meeting

held in December 2009 was to review consider and endorse the remuneration

packages proposed for the Executive Directors of the Company

According to the Companys Articles of Association Board Committee member

may waive notice of the relevant Board Committee meeting and any such waiver

may be prospective or retrospective

Board Committee members have access to the Company Secretary and key

officers of the Company Secretarial Department who are responsible to the Board

Committees for ensuring that Board Committee procedures and all applicable rules

and regulations are followed

A.1 .1

Regular board meetings should

be held at least four times year

involving active participation

either in person or through

other electronic means of

communication of majority of

directors

All members of the Board Committees are consulted as to whether they may want

to include any matter in the agenda before the agenda for each Board Committee

meeting is issued

Regular Board Committee meetings in particular year are usually scheduled

towards the end of the immediately preceding year to give all Board Committee
members adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each Board Committee

meeting

A.1.3

At least 14 days notice for

regular board meetings

Reasonable notice for other

board meetings

A.1 .4

All directors should have access

to the advice and services of the

company secretary with view to

ensuring that board procedures

and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed
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A.1.1O A.1.5

contd Minutes of board meetings

and meetings of board

committees should be kept by

duly appointed secretary of

the meeting

Such minutes should be

open for inspection at

any reasonable time on

reasonable notice by any

Minutes of board meetings

and meetings of board

committees should record in

sufficient detail the matters

considered by the board and

decisions reached

Draft and final versions of

board minutes for all directors

to comment and to keep

records within reasonable

time after the board meeting

procedure agreed by the

board to enable directors

upon reasonable request

to seek independent

professional advice in

appropriate circumstances at

the companys expense

The board should resolve

to provide separate

independent professional

advice to directors to assist

the relevant director or

directors to discharge his/her

duties to the company

A.1 .8

If substantial shareholder

or director has conflict

of interest in matter

to be considered by the

board which the board has

determined to be material

the matter should not be dealt

with by way of circulation or

by committee but board

meeting should be held

Independent non-executive

directors who and whose

associates have no material

interest in the transaction

should be present at such

board meeting

Corporate Governance Report continued

Recommended Recommended Comply Corporate GovernaricePradices

Beat Practice Ref Best Practices Explain

director

A.1.6

A.1 .7

The Company Secretary prepares minutes/written resolutions and keeps records of

substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at Board Committee meetings

Board Committee minutes/written resolutions are sent to all Board Committee

members within reasonable time generally within 14 days after each Board

Committee meeting

Board Committee minutes/written resolutions are available for inspection by Board

Committee members

The minutes of the Board Committees record in sufficient detail the matters

considered by the Board Committees and decisions reached

Board Committee members are given an opportunity to comment on the draft Board

Committee minutes

Final version of Board Committee minutes is placed on record within reasonable

time after the Board Committee meeting

Board Committee members have been advised that the Company Secretary can

arrange independent professional advice at the expense of the Company should such

advice be considered necessary by any Board Committee member

Board Committee members must declare his/her interest in the matters to be

considered by the Board Committee if applicable

In case of conflict of interests relevant Directors will refrain from voting

Mr Li Ka-shing the Chairman of the Board is also the Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee He refrained from voting at decisions made in respect of his own

remuneration package
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Recommended Recommended
Comply Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ret Best Practices Explain

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be clear division of
responsibilities

between the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company to ensure

balance of power and authority

A.2.4 Chairman to provide The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director who is responsible for the

leadership for the board leadership and effective running of the Board

The chairman should ensure The Chairman determines the broad
strategic

direction of the Group in consultation

that the board works with the Board and is responsible for the high-level oversight of management

effectively and discharges its

responsibilities and that all

The Board meets regularly and held meetings in March May August and

key and appropriate issues are
November 2009

discussed by the board in With the support of the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary the

timely manner Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and appropriate

The chairman should be
issues on timely manner

primarily responsible for
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for each

drawing up and approving Board meeting and ensures that where applicable matters proposed by other

the agenda for each board Directors are included in the agenda and that all applicable rules and regulations

meeting taking into account are followed
where appropriate any

matters proposed by the other

directors for inclusion in the

agenda The chairman may

delegate such responsibility to

designated director or the

company secretary

A.2.5 The chairman should take The Board as whole and the management of the Company are committed to the

responsibility for ensuring that maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures

good corporate governance

practices and procedures are

established

A.2.6 The chairman should encourage all Please refer to A.2.4 and A.2.5 of Part II above for the details

directors to make full and active

contribution to the boards affairs

and take the lead to ensure that

the board acts in the best interests

of the company

A.2.7 The chairman should at least In addition to regular Board meetings the Chairman had meetings with the

annually hold meetings with the Non-executive Directors including the Independent Non-executive Directors without

non-executive directors includng the presence of the Executive Directors in May and November 2009 Please refer to

independent non-executive A.2.2 of Part above for details of attendance records

directors without the executive

directors present

A.2.8 The chairman should ensure that The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders and

appropriate steps are taken to investors as set out in 1.2 of Part above

provide effective communication

with shareholders and that views

of shareholders are communicated

to the board as whole

A.2.9 The chairman should facilitate Please refer to A.2.4 and A.2.5 of Part II above for the details

the effective contribution of

non-executive directors in

particular and ensure constructive

relations between executive and

non-executive directors
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Recommended Recommended Comply Cl Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ref Best Practices Explain

A.3 Board composition

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should have balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company and should

include balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised

A.3.2 The company should appoint The Board consists of total of twenty Directors comprising eight Executive

independent non-executive Directors five Non-executive Directors and seven Independent Non-executive

directors representing at least Directors More than one-third of the Board are Independent Non-executive

one-third of the board Directors of which more than one have appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise

A.3.3 The company should maintain The Company maintains on its website an updated list of its Directors together

on its website an updated list of with their biographical information and identifies whether they are independent

its directors identifying their role non-executive directors The Company has also posted on its website the Terms of

and function and whether they Reference of the Board Committees to enable the shareholders to understand the

are independent non-executive role played by those Independent Non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant

directors Board Committees

The Company is of the view that Executive Directors are collectively in charge of the

overall executive functions of the Group as team for the purposes of efficiency and

effectiveness and hence it is neither appropriate nor meaningful to identify on its

website the role and function of its individual Executive Directors

A.4 Appointments re-election and removal

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be formaf considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for orderly

succession for appointments to the Board All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals

A.4.3 If an independent Each Independent Non-executive Director who was subject to retirement by

non-executive director serves rotation was appointed by separate resolution in the Companys annual

more than years any general meeting Each Independent Non-executive Director who was eligible for

further appointment of such re-election at the annual general meeting had made confirmation of

independent non-executive independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules The Company had

director should be subject to expressed the view in its circular that each Independent Non-executive Director

separate resolution to be who was eligible
for re-election had met the independence guidelines set out in

approved by shareholders Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and was independent in accordance with the terms

of the guidelines While in accordance with the recommended best practices the

The board should set out to
Company has to include its own recommendation in the circular to explain why

shareholders in the papers
particular candidate should be re-elected as their relevant credentials have been

accompanying resolution
included in the circular for the shareholders information the Company opines

to elect such an independent
that it is more important for the shareholders themselves to make their own

non-executive director the
independent decision on whether to approve particular re-election or not

reasons they believe that

the individual continues to

be independent and why he

should be re-elected

A4.4 The company should establish The Company does not have nomination committee The Board as whole is

A.4.8 nomination committee responsible for the appointment of new Directors and the nomination of Directors

majority of the members of for re-election by shareholders at the general meeting of the Company Under the

the nomination committee Companys Articles of Association the Board may from time to time appoint

should be independent Director either to fill casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board Any such new

non-executive directors Director shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company

in the case of filling casual vacancy or until the next following annual general
The nomination committee

meeting of the Company in the case of an addition to the Board and shall then be

should be established with
eligible for re-election at the same general meeting

specific written terms of

reference which deal clearly

with the committees

authority and duties
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Comply Corporate Gooefnance Practices

Best Practice Ref Best Practices Eoplain

At present the Company does not consider it necessary to have nomination

committee as the full Board is responsible for reviewing the structure size and

composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that it has balanced

composition of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the

businesses of the Company and the Board as whole is also responsible for

reviewing the succession plan for the Directors in particular the Chairman and the

Managing Director

Under the Companys Articles of Association the Board may from time to time

appoint Director either to fill casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board

The Company adopts formal considered and transparent procedure for the

appointment of new Directors Before prospective Directors name is formally

proposed the opinions of the existing Directors including the Independent

Non-executive Directors are sought After considering the proposal for the

appointment of new Director the Board as whole will make the final decision

The Board as whole is responsible for assessing the independence of the

Independent Non-executive Directors according to the relevant rules and

requirements under the Listing Rules The Company is of the view that all

Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in

the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance

with the terms of the guidelines

assess the independence

of independent

non-executive directors

make recommendations

to the board on relevant

matters relating to the

appointment or

re-appointment of

directors and succession

planning for directors in

particular the chairman

and the chief executive

officer

The nomination committee

should make available its

terms of reference explaining

its role and the authority

delegated to it by the board

The nomination committee

should be provided with

sufficient resources to

discharge its duties

Where the board proposes

resolution to elect an

individual as an independent

non-executive director

at the general meeting

it should set out in the

circular to shareholders

and/or explanatory statement

accompanying the notice

of the relevant general

meeting why they believe the

individual should be elected

and the reasons why they

consider the individual to be

independent

A.44-

A.4.8

contd

It is recommended that the

nomination committee should

discharge the following

duties

review the structure

size and composition

including the skills

knowledge and

experience of the board

on regular basis and

make recommendations

to the board regarding

any proposed changes

identify individuals

suitably qualified to

become board members

and select or make

recommendations to the

board on the selection

of individuals nominated

for directorships

and

Please refer to A.4.3 of Part II above for the details
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Recommended Recommended Comply Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ret Best Practices Explain

A.5 Responsibilities of directors

Corporate Governance Principle

Every Director is required to keep abreast of responsibilities as Director of the Company and of the conducf business activities and

development of the Company

A.5.5 All directors should participate The Company regularly reminds all Directors of their functions and responsibilities

in programme of continuous Through regular Board meetings and the circulation of written resolutions memos

professional development and board papers all Directors are kept abreast of the conduct business activities

to develop and refresh their and development of the Company

knowledge and skills to help

ensure that their contribution to package compiled and reviewed by the Companys legal
advisers setting out

the board remains informed and
the duties and

responsibilities
of directors under the

Listing Rules the Companies

relevant The company should
Ordinance and other related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of

be responsible for arranging and Hong Kong is provided to each newly appointed Director revised information

funding suitable development
package comprising the latest developments in laws rules and regu.ations relating

programme
to the duties and responsibilities of directors will be forwarded to each Director from

time to time for his/her information and ready reference Guide on Directors

Duties previously known as Non-statutory Guidelines on Directors Duties issued

by the Companies Registry of Hong Kong has been forwarded to each Director for

his/her information and ready reference

Memos are issued from time to time to keep Directors up to date with legal and

regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of

their duties

Seminars are organised from time to time at which distinguished professionals

are invited to present to the Directors on subjects relating to directors duties and

corporate governance etc

A.5.6 Each director should disclose to The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment
the company at the time of his and from time to time thereafter the number and nature of offices held in public

appointment and on periodic companies or organisations and other significant commitments identifying the

basis the number and nature of public companies or organisations involved

offices held in public companies

or organisations and other

significant commitments with the

identity
of the public companies

or organisations and an indication

of the time involved The board

should determine for itself how

frequently such disclosure should

be made

A.5.7 Non-executive directors as equal There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings Board Committee meetings
board members should give the meetings between the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors including

the board and any committees the Independent Non-executive Directors and the general meeting during the year

on which they serve such as the Please refer to A.1 .1 A.2.2 B.1 .1 and C.3.1 of Part above for details of attendance

audit remuneration or nomination records

committees the benefit of

their skills expertise and varied
Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both quant tatively and

backgrounds and qualifications
qualitatively

through regular attendance and

active participation They should

also attend general meetings and

develop balanced understanding

of the views of shareholders

A.5.8 Non-executive directors should There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings Board Committee meetings
make positive contribution to the meetings between the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors including

the development of the companys the Independent Non-executive Directors and the general meeting during the year

strategy and po icies through Please refer to A.1 .1 A.2.2 B.1 .1 and C.3.1 of Part above for details of attendance

independent constructive and records

informed comments

A.6 Supply of and access to information

Corporate Governance Principle

Directors should be provided in timely manner with appropriate information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to

make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company

There is no recommended best practice under Section A.6 in the Code on CG Practices
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Recommended Recommended Comply C/ Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ref Best Practices Eoplain hE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

Corporate Governance Principle

There should be formal and transparent procedure for setting policy on Executive Directors remuneration and for fixing the

remuneration packages for all Directors

.6 significant proportion of significant proportion of Executive Directors remuneration has been structured

executive directors remuneration so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance in 2009 Please refer

should be structured so as to to note in the Notes to Financial Statements for details of discretionary bonus

link rewards to corporate and

individual performance

B.1 .7 The company should disclose The remuneration payable to senior management represents only small portion of

details of any remuneration the turnover and
profits

of the Company As matter of practice disclosing detai

payable to members of senior of the remuneration payable to senior management on an individual basis does not

management on an individual bring significant benefits or provide useful information to the shareholders

and named basis in their annual

reports and accounts

B.1 .8 Where the board resolves to N/A The Board has never approved any remuneration or compensation arrangements

approve any remuneration or which have previously been rejected by the Remuneration Committee

compensation arrangements which

the remuneration committee has

previously resolved not to approve

the board must sclose the

reasons for its resolution in its next

annual report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial reporting

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should present balanced clear and comprehensible assessment of the Companys performance position and prospects

C.1.4 The company should The Company issued half-yearly financial results within months after the end of

C.1.5 announce and publish the relevant period and annual financial results within months after the end of

quarterly nancial results the relevant year In addition all significant and price-sensitive transactions have

within 45 days after the been announced and disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules during the year

end of the relevant quarter The shareholders of the Company are therefore able to assess the performance

disclosing such information financ al position and prospects of the Company The Company does not consider

as would enable shareholders it necessary nor is it in the interests of the Company and its shareholders to issue

to assess the performance quarterly financial results This would result in incurring costs disproportionate to

financial position and any additiona benefits to the shareholders

prospects of the company

Any such quarterly financial Quarterly financial reports may not fairly
reflect the actual performance of the

reports should be prepared
Company given that the development cycle of property projects often spans

using the accounting policies
period of three to five years

applied to the companys

half-year dnd annual

accounts

Once the company decides

to announce and publish its

quarterly financial results

it should continue to adopt

quarterly reporting for each

of the first and months

periods of subsequent

fnanoal years Where the

company decides not to

announce and publish its

financial results for
particular

quarter it should publish an

announcement to disclose the

reasons for such decision
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to the board or board

committees which enables

it to build up cumulative

assessment of the state of

control in the company and

the effectiveness with which

risk is being managed

the incidence of significant

control failings or weakness

that has been identified at

any time during the period

and the extent to which they

have resulted in unforeseen

outcomes or contingencies

that have had could have

had or may in the future

have material impact on

the companys financial

performance or conditions

and

the effectiveness of the

companys processes relating

to financial reporting and

Listing Rule compliance

the changes in the significant risks since the last review and the Companys

ability to respond to changes in its business and the external environment

the managements ongoing monitoring of risks and the system of nternal

control and the work of the internal audit function

the communication of the monitoring results to the Board that enables it to

build up cumulative assessment of the state of control the Company and the

effectiveness of the risk management

any incidence of significant control failings or weaknesses identified and the

extent to which they have caused unforeseeable outcomes or contingencies that

had or might have material impact on the Companys financial performance or

condition and

the effectiveness of the Companys processes relating to financial reporting and

Listing
Rules compliance

Recommended Recommended
Comply Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ref Best Practices
Explain

C.2 Internal controls

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should ensure that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders investment

and the Companys assets

The Board through the Audit Committee reviews annually the effectiveness

of system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries such review

considers

C.2.3 The boards annual review should

in particular consider

the changes since the last

annual review in the nature

and extent of significant risks

and the companys ability

to respond to changes in its

business and the external

environment

the scope and quality of

managements ongoing

montoring of risks and of the

system of internal control and

where applicable the work of

its internal audit function and

other providers of assurance

the extent and frequency of

the communication of the

results of the monitoring

2.4 The company should disclose as In the Corporate Governance Report the Company in particular item C.2.1 of Part

part of the Corporate Governance discloses

Report narrative statement how
the process of identifying evaluating and managing the significant risks

they have complied with the code

provisions on internal control
any additional information to assist understanding of the risk management

during the reporting period The
processes and internal control system

disclosures should also include the

following items an acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible for the internal control

system and for reviewing its effectiveness

the process that the company

has applied for identifying
the process applied in reviewing the effectiveness of internal control system and

evaluating and managing the
the process applied to deal with material internal control aspects of any

significant
risks faced by it

significant problems disclosed in its Annual Reports and Financial Statements
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Recommended Recommended Comply Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ref Best Practices Explain

C.2.4 any additional information to

contd assist understanding of the

companys risk management

processes and system of

internal control

an acknowledgement by the

board that it is responsible

for the companys system

of internal control and for

reviewing its effectiveness

the process that the company

has applied in reviewing the

effectiveness of the system of

internal control and

the process that the company

has applied to deal with

material internal control

aspects of any significant

problems disclosed in its

annual reports and accounts

C.2.5 The company should ensure The Company aims to ensure disclosures provide meaningful information and do

that their disclosures provide not give misleading impression

meaningful information and do not

give misleading impression

C.2.6 The company without an internal N/A Please refer to C.2 of Part above for the details

audit function should review the

need for one on an annual basis

and should disclose the outcome

of such review in the companys

Corporate Governance Report

C.3 Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal

control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Companys auditors

C.3.7 The terms of reference of the audit The Company has issued an employees handbook to its staff which contains the

committee should also require the mechanism for employees to raise any questions they may have to their department

audit committee head and to the human resources and administration department for necessary

action whether these relate to their career development or any other grievances

to review arrangements by and complaints they may have The Company considers such mechanisms to

which employees of the
be sufficient to ensure that there is channel for employees to have direct

company may in confidence
communication with the management of the Company

raise concerns about possible

improprieties in financial

reporting internal control

or other matters The audit

committee should ensure

that proper arrangements

are in place for the fair and

independent investigation

of such matters and for

appropriate follow-up action

and

to act as the key

representative body for

overseeing the companys

relation with the external

auditor
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Recommended Recommended
Comply C/ Corporate Governance Practices

Best Practice Ret Best Practices Eoplain

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management functions

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should have formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board and those delegated to management

D.1 .3 The company should disclose the Please refer to the Management Structure Chart set out on page 79

division of
responsibility

between

the board and management to

assist those affected by corporate

decisions to better understand

the respective accountabilities and

contributions of the board and

management

D.1 .4 Directors should clearly It is not the Companys practice to have formal letters of appointment for its

understand delegation Directors Nevertheless Directors clearly understand their duties to the Company

arrangements in place To that to which they are collectively and individually responsible for In addition part of

end the company should have these duties relate to fiduciary duties duties of skill care and diligence established

formal letters of appointment under common law over long period of time and it is not feasible to attempt

for directors setting out the key to formulate these comprehensively in writing The
difficulty

in reducing these

terms and conditions relative to comprehensively into written form may be inferred by the fact that currently

their appointment directors duties are set out in non-statutory guidelines issued by the Companies

Registry instead of being provided for in the Companies Ordinance To have

formal letter of appointment may also lead to inflexibility

D.2 Board Committees

Corporate Governance Principle

Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees authority and

duties

There is no recommended best practice under Section D.2 in the Code on CO Practices

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication

Corporate Governance Principle

The Board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular use annual general meetings or

other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation

There is no recommended best practice under Section E.1 in the Code on CG Practices

E.2 Voting by poii

Corporate Governance Principle

The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting poll

There is no recommended best practice under Section in the Code on CO Practices
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Schedue of Major Properties
Dated he 31st day of Decombei 2009

PROPER11ES FOR/UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Hong Kong

Coiduit 18 level

Central Park Towers Tin Shu Wai

site at Hung Shui Kin

site at Ma On Shan

Meridian HilL Kowloon Tong

site at Kowoon big
ste at ben Mon

site at Middevel

site at Lai Chi Kok

site at lung Horn

site at Fung Yuen Tat D0

site at Kwai Chung

at North Point

site at Aberdeen

site at tong Yuen fai ho

site at Yuen Long

site at North District

Va ions sites at Yuen Long

Various sites at Tai ho

The Greeiwich

Sb isanl ing

Regency Residence

Regency Park

Noble Hills

Tianning

Noble bills

Cape Coral

Yanqiashan

Lagunc Verona

Lot Number/Location

IL /11 sA

SWT.L 24

ot 2064 in D.D 121

T.T.L 548

N.KIL 099

N.K.l.L 4782

TM 334

l.L 1381 s.A sB R.P

N.KM 21

Various sectio is and

subsections in K.M 53

P.T 183

K.C.T 157

FL 3319 Rh
IL 354

Various ots D.D 11

Lot 1457 h.P in D.D 123

Various lots

Various lots

Various ots

Beili rig

Beiling

Beili ng

ha ngc hun

Changchun

Changsha

Changzhou

Chenqdu

Cher gdu

hongqi ng

Chongqi ig

Chongqing

Dorigguari

sq

Description

Approx

Site Area

The Mainland

La Grande

Groups
Interest

100.0c

98.5%

500c
1000%

1000%

000%
1000c

100 0c
100 00
1000%

1000%

l000
100 0c
1000%

1000%

60

100 0/c

100 0c
100

100 0o

50 0c
50.000

50 0%

50.0%

50 0%

5000o

50 0c

500%

50.0%

4/5%
47 5%
49.8 0/

52
32810

16292

16440

26

1/4

220

1020

28 14

2620
645

61
2006

/021/

/99 9/7

167828

195561

2700

741823

173179

256321

133 220

78294

532055

80 598

725933

3326

43 148

52581

1041341

25018%

Ic Paic

Regeny Oasis
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Approx Floor

Area Attributable Estimated Date

to the Group Existing Land Use Stage of Completion of Completion

sq

2961 Residential Interior finishing April 2010

68394 Residential Interior finishing June 2010

24938 Residential Superstructure in progress May 2011

82200 Residential Superstructure
in progress June 2011

12795 Residential Superstructure in progress June 2011

4417 Residential Foundation work November 2011

4026 Residential Foundation work March 2012

8141 Residential Demolition work December 2012

23996 Residential/Commercial Planning December 2012

3527 Residential/Commercial Planning December 2012

87356 Residential Foundation work July 2013

24189 Industrial Demolition work completed September 2013

6276 Residential Planning December 2014

Industrial Planning

Agricultural land Planning

Agricultural land Planning

Agricultural land Planning

Agricultural land Planning

Agricultural land Planning

95477 Residential Interior finishing December 2010

104337 Residential Site formation December 2012

245280 Residential Site formation December 2014

119597 Residential Planning July 2011

39999 Residential Planning April 2013

22691 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress December 2010

67176 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress December 2011

55855 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress December 2010

118209 Residential/Commercial Planning December 2012

75736 Residential Superstructure in progress December 2010

234698 Residential/Commercial Planning March 2014

9888 Residential Planning December 2010

10989 Residential Planning March 2011

35035 Residential Planning March 2012

54423 Residential Planning March 2013

59753 Residential Superstructure in progress September 2010

113693 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress June 2011

105597 Residential Site formation September 2012

119996 Residential Site formation March 2013

585743 Residential/Commercial Planning

45785 Residential Superstructure in progress December 2010

23709 Residential Superstructure in progress June 2011

81539 Residential Planning June 2012

94219 Residential/Commercial Foundation work December 2013

66741 Residential Superstructure in progress December 2010

132002 Residential Planning March 2012

72777 Residential/Commercial Foundation work September 2012

1467265 Residential/Commercial Planning

148393 Residential/Commercial Planning December 2011

553526 Residential/Commercial Planning
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Schedule of Major Properties continued

PROPERTIES FOR/UNDER DEVELOPMENT continued

Groups Approx
Description Lot Number/Location Interest Site Area

sq

The Mainland continued

The Riverside and Metropolitan Plaza Guangzhou 50.0% 50290

Yuhu Mingdi Guangzhou 40.0% 225548

Cape Coral Guangzhou 50.0% 274026

Zengcheng Guangzhou 50.0% 2112632
International Toys Gifts Center Guangzhou 30.0% 321261

Aotou Daya Bay Huizhou 50.0% 80051

Yinhuwan Jiangmen 45.0% 1333308

Xiaogangwan Qingdao 45.0% 311774

Regency Park Shanghai 50.0% 16651

Regency Cove Shanghai 42.5% 260556

Nanhui Zhoupu Shanghai 42.5% 263412

Lujiazui Pudong Shanghai 50.0% 9298
Zhen Ru Fu Zhong XIn Putuo Shanghai 36.8% 176854

Xin Zha Road Shanghai 30.0% 14528

Nanxiang Jiading Shanghai 50.0% 211621

Century Link Shanghai 25.0% 51280

Kerry Everbright City Shanghai 24.8% 15858

Regency Park Shenzhen 50.0% 143919

Century Place Shenzhen 40.0% 17105

Le Sommet Shenzhen 50.0% 178931

Noble Hills Shenzhen 50.0% 85183

Metropolitan Tianjin 40.0% 19617

Caidian Wuhan 50.0% 770590

Laopupian Jianghan Wuhan 50.0% 35213

Hualou Jie iianghan Wuhan 50.0% 105934

The Greenwich Xian 50.0% 427238

Qiao Island Zhuhai 50.0% 199996

Overseas

Marina Bay Singapore 16.7% 53331

The Vision Singapore 50.0% 12000

Lots Road Chelsea Harbour London United Kingdom 47.5% 35693

Convoys Wharf London United Kingdom 50.0% 161876
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Approx Floor

Area Attributable Estimated Date

to the Group Existing Land Use Stage of Completion of Completion

sq

43508 Commercial Interior finishing June 2010

77394 Residential Superstructure in progress September 2010

17192 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress May 2011

75552 Residential/Commercial Planning March 2013

42250 Residential Foundation work September 2011

36015 Residential Planning June 2012

83148 Residential/Commercial Planning June 2013

165992 Residential/Commercial Planning September 2012

51402 Commercial Planning

120076 Residential Planning March 2014

13140 Commercial/Hotel Planning June 2012

176442 Residential Planning

413879 Residential/Commercial Planning

4977 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress September 2010

18824 Residential Foundation work December 2010

13254 Residential Planning December 2010

58212 Residential Planning june 2011

17465 Residential/Commercial Planning June 2012

55716 Residential Planning March 2013

40000 Commercial Foundation work March 2012

114270 Commercial Foundation work March 2012

24791 Residential Planning june 2013

126079 Residential/Commercial/Hotel Planning

17373 Commercial Foundation work September 2012

164969 Residential/Commercial Planning April 2013

54613 Commercial Planning September 2013

25488 Commercial Planning

30167 Residential Superstructure in progress September 2010

74802 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress September 2010

26954 Residential/Commercial Site formation October 2010

89880 Residential/Commercial Site formation November 2011

73694 Residential/Commercial Planning September 2011

64893 Commercial Superstructure in progress December 2010

29137 Residential Superstructure in progress January 2011

29935 Residential Planning December 2010

508285 Residential/Commercial/Hotel Planning

81622 Residential/Commercial Planning March 2013

183332 Residential/Commercial Planning

134235 Residential/Commercial Superstructure in progress December 2010

190236 Residential/Commercial Planning December 2011

142330 Residential/Commercial Planning September 2012

44010 Residential Planning December 2012

73954 Residential Planning June 2014

20266 Residential/Commercial Interior finishing April 2010

20368 Commercial Superstructure in progress September 2010

25066 Commercial Superstructure in progress June 2012

7268 Residential Foundation work July 2014

16800 Residential Planning September 2013

37454 Residential/Commercial Demolition work

144217 Residential/Commercial Planning
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Schedule of Major Properties continued

PROPERTIES IN WHICH THE GROUP HAS DEVELOPMENT INTEREST

Description

Hong Kong

Le Prestige of LOHAS Park Tseung Kwan

Festival City Tai Wai

PROPERTIES FOR INVESTMENT/OWN USE

S.T.T.L 529 70597

Groups

Lot Number/Location Interest

Hong Kong
The Center portion Central

United Centre portion Admiralty

Kingswood Ginza Tin Shui Wai

Victoria Mall Tsim Sha Tsui

Rambler Plaza Ising Yi

Rambler Garden Hotel Tsing Yi

Rambler Oasis Hotel Tsing Yi

Harbour Plaza Resort City Tin Shui Wai

Harbourview Horizon All-Suite Hotel Hung Hom Bay

Harbourfront Horizon All-Suite Hotel Hung Hom Bay

The Apex Horizon Kwai Chung

Harbour Plaza North Point

Horizon Suite Hotel at Tolo Harbour Ma On Shan

Harbour Plaza Metropolis Hung Hom
The Kowloon Hotel Tsim Sha Tsui

Harbour Grand Hong Kong North Point

Harbour Plaza Degrees Kowloon City

1881 Heritage Tsim Sha Tsui

Conic Investment Building Hung Hom

lung Yuen Street Yau Tong

T.S.W.T.L

T.Y.T.L 140

T.Y.T.L 140

T.Y.T.L 140

T.S.W.T.L

K.I.L 11103

K.l.L 11110

K.C.T.L 467 R.P

IL 8885

S.T.T.L 461

IL 7106 s.A Extension

K.I.L 4013 R.P

K.l.L 11161

Y.T.M.L 69

100.0%

100.0%

98.5%

42.5%

30.0%

30.0%

30.0%

98.5%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

60.9%

51.0%

50.0%

50.0%

Development interest

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

The Mainland

Sheraton Shenyang Lido Hotel

Sheraton Chengdu Lido Hotel

Harbour Plaza Chongqing

Metropolitan Plaza

Westgate Mall

Kerry Everbright City

Lido Place

Oriental Plaza

Shenyang

Chengdu

Chongqing

Chongqing

Shanghai

Shanghai

Beijing

Beijing

99.0%

70.0%

50.0%

50.0%

30.0%

24.8%

40.0%

33.4%

Lot Number/Location

T.K.O.TL 70

Approx
Site Area

sq

31490

Area 85 Tseung Kwan T.K.O.T.L 90 19480
Area 86 Tseung Kwan Package T.K.O.T.L 70 13587
MTR Tsuen Wan West Station T.W.T.L 403 23742

Description

Notes to Schedule of Major Properties

Properties which are insignificant including overseas properties agricultural land and completed properties

for sales are not included

Properties owned by listed and unlisted associates are not included

For properties in which the Group has development interest other parties provide the land whilst the

Group finances the construction costs and occasionally also the land costs and is entitled to share of

the revenue/development profits/properties after completion in accordance with the terms and conditions

of the joint development agreements
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Approx Floor

Area of the Estimated Date

Development Existing Land Use Stage of Completion of Completion

sq

125670 Residential Interior finishing January 2010

100760 Residential Interior finishing September 2010

83266 Residential Superstructure in progress September 2012

100372 Residential Exterior finishing February 2010

100372 Residential Interior finishing September 2010

113211 Residential Superstructure in progress December 2011

97400 Residential Foundation work June 2011

128544 Residential Superstructure in progress December 2012

113064 Residential Foundation work December 2013

Approx Floor

Approx Area Attributable

Site Area to the Group Existing Use Lease Term

sq sq

113169 Commercial Medium Term Lease

3512 Commercial Long Lease

49211 Commercial Medium Term Lease

6634 Commercial Medium Term Lease

907 1696 Commercial Medium Term Lease

3147 5884 Hotel Medium Term Lease

3178 5943 Hotel Medium Term Lease

60591 Hotel Medium Term Lease

9940 119280 Hotel Medium Term Lease

20364 107444 Hotel Medium Term Lease

7825 21190 Hotel Medium Term Lease

19410 Hotel Medium Term Lease

8000 28560 Hotel Medium Term Lease

21429 Hotel Medium Term Lease

15311 Hotel Medium Term Lease

6816 41341 Hotel Medium Term Lease

3153 21420 Hotel Long Lease

12289 13023 Commercial/Hotel Medium Term Lease

30409 Industrial Medium Term Lease

2108 7170 Godown Medium Term Lease

14449 81180 Hotel Medium Term Lease

461 39445 Hotel Medium Term Lease

25872 Hotel Medium Term Lease

70212 Commercial Medium Term Lease

30640 Commercial Medium Term Lease

2201 Commercial/Residential Medium Term Lease

67090 Commercial/Hotel/Serviced apartment Medium Term Lease

191232 Commercial/Hotel/Serviced apartment Medium Term Lease



CHEUNG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st Decembec 2009

2009 2008

Restated

Note Million Million

Group turnover 17702

Share of property sales of jointly controlled entities 6591

12856

3580

Turnover 24293 16436

Group turnover 17702 12856

Investment and other income 2614 466

Operating costs

Property and related costs 10314 6035
Salaries and related expenses 1032 944
Interest and other finance costs 233 454

Other expenses 672 498

12251 7931
Share of net profit of jointly controlled entitIes 2734 2355

Increase in fair value of investment properties 3857 134

Operating profit 14656 7880

Share of net profit of associates 7296 6209

Profit before taxation 21952 14089

Taxation 1644 859

Profit for the year 20308 13230

Profit attributable to minority interests 422 201

Profit attributable to shareholders 19886 13029

Earnings per share $8.59 $5.63
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st December 2009

2009 2008

Million Million

Profit for the year
20308 13230

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial statements of foreign operations
59

Investments available for sale

Gain/Ioss in fair value 3250 6582

Gain in fair value transferred to income statement upon disposal 121 1174

Impairment transferred to income statement 665 1139

Share of other comprehensive income of jointly controlled entities

and unlisted associates 461 581

Total comprehensive income for the year 24564 7353

Total comprehensive income attributable to

Shareholders 24141 7147

Minority interests 423 206

24564 7353
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31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Restated

Million Million

1/1/2008

Restated

Million

Li Ka-shing Ip Tak Chuen Edmond

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31st December 2009

Non-current assets

Note

Fixed assets 10696 11624 10560

Investment properties 19433 15670 15497

Associates 148049 144977 142567

Jointly controlled entities 12 32591 29391 23614

Investments available for sale 13 7026 4678 10060

Long term loan receivables 444 1093 956

218239 207433 203254

Current assets

Stock of properties 14 62999 64273 59959

Debtors deposits and prepayments 15 2799 3904 4066
Investments held for trading 16 1927 858 1439

Derivative financial instruments 83 22 294

Bank balances and deposits 7173 560911423

79231 76230 71367

Current liabilities

Bank and other loans 17 7210 8991 8872

Creditors and accruals 18 12078 6940 8430
Loan from joint development partner 19 2000 2000
Derivative financial instruments 460 872 437

Provision for taxation 1028 768 860

Net current assets 56455 56659 52768

Total assets less current liabilities 274694 264092 256022

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other loans 17 25279 31258 23655

Loan from joint development partner 19 -- 2000 4000
Deferred tax liabilities 20 201 1359 1300

27290 34617 28955

Net assets 247404 229475 227067

Representing

Share capital 21 1158 1158 1158

Share premium 9331 9331 9331

Reserves 233110 214644 213172

Shareholders funds 243599 225133 223661

Minority interests 3805 4342 3406

Total equity 247404 229475 227067

Director Director
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31st December 2009

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Note Million Million

Non-current assets

Fixed assets 11

Subsidiaries 10 31554 30549

Associates 11 50 50

Jointly controlled entities 12 721 462

Long term loan receivables

32334 31074

Current assets

Stock of properties 14
Debtors deposits and repayments 269 99

Bank balances and deposits
16 722

288 824

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals 18 164 141

Provision for taxation

Net current assets 120 683

Net assets 32454 31757

Representing

Share capital 21 1158 1158

Share premium 9331 9331

Reserves 22 21965 21268

Total equity 32454 31757

Li Ka-shing Tak Chuen Edmond

Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2009

Shareholders Funds

Balance at 1st January 2008 as previously reported

Prior year adjustments note

10834 4427 2251 209691 227203

3542 3542

3406 230609

3542

Balance at 1st January 2008 as restated

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial statements

of foreign operations

Loss in fair value of investments avai able for sale

Gain in fair value of investments available for sale

transferred to income statement upon disposal

Impairment of investments available for sale

transferred to income statement

Share of other comprehensive income of jointly

controlled entities and unlisted associates

Share capital premium and reserve comprise share capital of $1158 million share premium of $9331 million and

Share
capital Investment Restated

premium and revaluation Exchange Retained Minority Total

reserve reserve reserve profits
Total interests

Equity

Million Million Million Million Million Million Million

10834 4427 2251 206149 223661 3406 227067

13029 13029 201 13230

151 151 159

6579 6579 6582

1174 1174 1174

1139 1139 1139

41 622 581 581

6655 773 13029 7147 206 7353

907 907

177 177

4517 4517 4517

1158 1158 1158

Total comprehensive income for the year

Change in minority interests

Dividend paid to minorities

Dividend paid to shareholders

2007 final dividend $1.95 per share

2008 interim dividend $0.50 per share

Balance at 31st December 2008 10834 2228 3024 213503 225133 4342 229475

Balance at 1st January 2009 as prevously reported 10834 2228 3024 219534 231164 4342 235506

Prior year adjustments note 6031 6031 6031

Balance at 1st January 2009 as restated 10834 2228 3024 213503 225133 4342 229475

Profit for the year 19886 19886 422 20308

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial statements

of foreign operations

Gain in fair value of investments available for sale 3249 3249 3250

Gain in fair value of investments available for sale

transferred to income statement upon disposal 121 121 121
Impairment of investments available for sale

transferred to income statement 665 665 665

Share of other comprehensive income of jointly

controlled entities and unlisted associates 116 345 461 461

Total comprehensive income for the year 3909 346 19886 24141 423 24564

Change in minority interests 711 711

Dividend paid to minorities 249 249

Dividend paid to shareholders

2008 final dividend $1.95 per share 4517 4517 4517

2009 interim dividend $0.50 per share 1158 1158 1158

Balance at 31st December 2009 10834 1681 3370 227714 243599 3805 247404

capital reserve of $345 million
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31st December 2009

2009 2008

Note Million Million

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations 16010 661

Investment in/advance to jointly controlled entities 1221 2887
Dividend/repayment from jointly controlled entities 1413 519

Dividend from associates 3717 3725

Dividend from investments in securities 249 751

Interest received 228 406

Dividend paid to shareholders 5675 5675
Dividend paid to minorities 249 177
Profits tax paid 713 914

Net cash from/used in operating activities 13759 3591

Investing activities

Investment in/advance to associates 12 54

Repayment from associates 14 140

Disposal of associates 489

Investment in/advance to jointly controlled entities 535 586
Purchase of investments available for sale 595 4373
Disposal/redemption of investments available for sale 1545 3379

Addition of investment properties 242 25
Disposal of investment properties 1722

Addition of fixed assets 711 898

Net cash from/used in investing activities 1675 2417

Financing activities

Borrowing of bank and other loans 6463 15911

Repayment of bank and other loans 16337 8204
Increase/decrease in funding from minorities 711 907

Interest and other finance costs paid 599 042

Net cash from/used in financing activities 11184 7572

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4250 1564

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 7173 5609

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 11423 7173
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows continued

Notes

Cash generated from operations

2009 2008

Restated

Million Million

Profit before taxation 21952 14089

Interest income 216 400
Interest and other finance costs 233 454

Dividend income from investments in securities 295 762
Share of net profit of jointly controlled entities 2734 2355
Share of net profit of associates 7296 6209
Profit on disposal of associates 952

Increase in fair value of investment properties 3857 134

lncrease/decrease in long term loan receivables 660 254

Gain/loss on investments available for sale 544 35
Gain on disposal of investment properties 350

Depreciation
349 284

Exchange difference and other items 122 53
Decrease in investments held for trading 12 581

Increase/decrease in stock of properties 1541 3601
Increase in customers deposits received 4990 1521

Decrease in debtors deposits and prepayments 1069 82

Increase/decrease in derivative financial instruments 473 707

Increase/decrease in creditors and accruals 711 3254

Changes in working capital 7850 3964

16010 661

Cash and cash equivalents

2009 2008

Million Million

Bank balances and deposits 11423 7173
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Notes to Financial Statements

General Information

The Company is limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited The address of the registered office and other corporate

information are set out on page 140 of the annual report

Principal Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles in Hong Kong and comply with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HKFRSs
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments

in securities investment properties and derivative financial instruments as set out in notes 2f 2h

and 2l respectively are stated at fair values

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued number of new and revised

HKFRSs The adoption of the HKFRSs which are effective for accounting periods beginning on 1st

January 2009 has resulted in the following change in the Groups accounting policies

In prior years investment property under development was classified as land and buildings and

carried at cost less provision for impairment Following the adoption of amendments to HKAS 16

Property Plant and Equipment and HKAS 40 Investment Property investment property under

development is classified as investment property and stated at fair value when its fair value becomes

reliably determinable or upon completion of its construction whichever is the earlier The change

in accounting policy has been applied prospectively from 1st January 2009 and has no material

impact on the Groups results and financial position

The adoption of the HKFRSs has also resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial

statements and certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current years

presentation

During the year Hutchison Whampoa Limited listed associate had changes in accounting policies

which have material effects on its profit attributable to shareholders and opening balance of

shareholders funds The Groups share of the effects of these changes has the following impact

on the financial statements

Year ended 31st December

2009 2008

Million Million

Increase/decrease in share of net profit of associates 479 2489

Increase/decrease in profit attributable to shareholders 479 2489

lncrease/decrease in earnings per share $0.21 $1 .07
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Principal Accounting Policies continued

Basis of preparation continued

Decrease in associates

Decrease in total equity

For the following HKFRSs which are not yet effective the Group is in the process of assessing their

impact on the Groups results and financial position

Effective for the year ending 31st December 2010

HKAS 27 Revised

HKAS 39 Amendment

HKFRS5 Amendments

HKFRS Amendments

HKFRS Revised

HKIFRIC-lnt 17

HK-Int Amendment

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Eligible Hedged Items

Improvements to HKFRSs

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Leases Determination of the Length of Lease

Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases

Effective for the year ending 31st December 2011

HKAS 24 Revised

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKIFRIC-lnt 14 Amendment

HKIFRIC-Int 19

Related Party Disclosures

Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of Minimum Funding Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Effective for the year ending 31st December 2013

Notes to Financial Statements continued

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008

Million Million Million

5552 6031 3542

Decrease in net assets 5552 6031 3542

Decrease in retained profits at 1st January 6031 3542 3542
lncrease/decrease in profit for the year 479 2489

5552 6031 3542

HKFRS Financial Instruments
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Principal Accounting Policies continued

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of the Company

and of all its direct and indirect subsidiaries made up to 31st December and also Incorporate the

Groups interests in jointly controlled entities and associates on the basis set out in note 2d and

note 2e respectively

Results of subsidiaries jointly controlled entities and associates acquired or disposed of during the

year are included as from their effective dates of acquisition to the end of the year or up to the

dates of disposal as the case may be Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries and associates is carried

at cost and reviewed for impairment annually Impairment if any is charged to income statement

Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment where appropriate

Jointly controlled entities

jointly controlled entity is an entity in which the Group has long term equity interest and of

which its financial and operating policies are under contractual arrangements jointly controlled by

the Group and other parties

Investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated financial statements at cost

plus the Groups share of their post-acquisition results less dividends received and provision for

impairment

Results of jointly controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements to the

extent of the Groups share of their comprehensive income calculated from their financial statements

made up to 31st December

Associates

An associate is an entity other than subsidiary or jointly controlled entity in which the Group

has long term equity interest and has significant influence over its management

Investments in associates are carried in the consolidated financial statements at cost plus the Groups

share of their post-acquisition results less dividends received and provision for impairment

Results of associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements to the extent of the

Groups share of their comprehensive income calculated from their financial statements made up

to 31st December and losses of associates in excess of the Groups interests in the associates are

not recognised unless the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

Principal Accounting Policies continued

Investments in securities

Investments which are not subsidiaries jointly controlled entities or associates are classified as either

investments held for trading or investments available for sale and are stated at fair value Purchases

and sales of investments in securities are accounted for on trade date basis

For investments held for trading changes in fair value are included in income statement and for

investments available for sale changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income

and transferred to income statement upon disposal For equity securities available for sale where

there are significant or prolonged declines in fair value below costs and for debt securities available

for sale where there are observable evidences that the debt securities cannot be recovered in full

impairment is charged to income statement and is not reversible unless increase in fair value of

the debt securities in subsequent period can be objectively related to events occurring after the

impairment is recognised

Fixed assets

Fixed assets including hotel and serviced suite properties held for operation are stated at cost less

depreciation and provision for impairment

Leasehold land is amortised over the remaining term of the lease on straight-line basis Buildings

are depreciated at annual rates of 2% to 4% on the costs of the respective buildings Other fixed

assets are depreciated on straight-line basis at annual rates of 5% to 331/3% based on their

respective estimated useful lives

Investment properties

Investment properties which are held for rental are stated at fair value Investment properties

under development are stated at fair value when their fair values become reliably determinable or

upon completion of their construction whichever is the earlier otherwise at cost less provision for

impairment Changes in fair value are included in income statement

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments Loan

receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method less provision for impairment

Stock of properties

Stock of properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value is

determined by reference to sale proceeds received after the year end date less selling expenses or

by management estimates based on prevailing market condition

Costs of properties include acquisition costs development expenditure interest and other direct costs

attributable to such properties The carrying values of properties held by subsidiaries are adjusted in

the consolidated financial statements to reflect the Groups actual acquisition costs where appropriate
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Principal Accounting Policies continued

Debtors

Debtors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost less provision

for impairment

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments which are used for investment and financial purposes are stated at

fair value Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and qualify

as fair value hedges are included in income statement together with any changes in fair value of

the hedged assets or liabilities that are attributable to the hedged risk Changes in fair value of

derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in income

statement

Bank and other loans

Bank and other loans are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised

cost

Creditors

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost

Revenue recognition

When properties under development are sold income is recognised when the property development

is completed with the relevant occupation permit issued by the Authorities and the significant risks

and rewards of the properties are passed to the purchasers Payments received from purchasers

prior to this stage are recorded as customers deposits received

Rental income is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the lease Income from property

and project management is recognised when services are rendered Revenue from hotel and serviced

suite operation is recognised upon provision of services Interest income is recognised on time

proportion basis using the effective interest method and dividend income is recognised when the

right to receive payment is certain

Foreign exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of

exchange ruling at the year end date Transactions during the year are converted at the rates of

exchange ruling at the transaction dates Exchange differences are included in income statement

For translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries jointly controlled entities and associates

denominated in foreign currencies into presentation currency of the Company assets and liabilities

are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the year end date and results are translated at the

average rates of exchange during the year and if the average rates are not reasonable approximations

of the exchange rates at the transaction dates then the exchange rates at the transaction dates

are used Exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and transferred to

income statement upon disposal
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

Principal Accounting Policies continued

Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax is provided for using the enacted rate at the year end date on the estimated

assessable profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward of each individual company

comprising the Group Overseas tax is provided for using the local enacted rates at the
year end

date on the estimated assessable profits of the individual company concerned

Deferred tax liabilities are provided in full based on the applicable enacted rates on all temporary

differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases and deferred

tax assets are recognised based on the applicable enacted rates to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and

unused tax losses can be utilised

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to income statement in the year in which they are incurred unless

they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition and development of properties

which necessarily take substantial period of time to complete

Turnover and Contribution

The principal activities of the Group are property development and investment hotel and serviced suite

operation property and project management and investment in securities

Turnover of Group activities comprises proceeds from property sales gross rental income revenue from

hotel and serviced suite operation and income from property and project management In addition the

Group also accounts for its proportionate share of proceeds from property sales of jointly controlled

entities as turnover Turnover of jointly controlled entities save for proceeds from property sales shared

by the Group and turnover of listed and unlisted associates are not included

Turnover of the Group by operating activities for the year is as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Property sales 14922 10309

Property rental 1155 945

Hotels and serviced suites 1399 1383

Property and project management 226 219

Group turnover 17702 12856

Share of property sales of jointly controlled entities 6591 3580

Turnover 24293 6436
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Turnover and Contribution continued

During the year turnover of the Groups operating activities outside Hong Kong including property sales

of jointly controlled entities accounted for approximately 27% 2008 23% of the turnover and was

derived from the following locations

2009 2008

Million Million

The Mainland 6676 3783

Singapore 10

6678 3793

Profit contribution by operating activities for the year is as follows

Company and Jointly controlled

subsidiaries entities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Property sales 5501 4466 2895 2081 8396 6547

Property rental 1062 829 677 620 1739 1449

Hotels and serviced suites 360 470 157 340 517 810

Property and project management 109 104 109 104

7032 5869 3729 3041 10761 8910

Investment and finance 1411 268

Interest and other finance costs 233 454
Increase in fair value of investment properties

Subsidiaries 3857 134

Jointly controlled entities 693 467

Others 218 30

Taxation

Company and subsidiaries 1644 859

Jointly controlled entities 1918 1445
Profit attributable to minority interests 422 201

12723 6850

Share of net profitloss of major listed associates

Hutchison Whampoa Limited 7078 6336

CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc 85 57

Profit attributable to shareholders 19886 13029
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Profit before Taxation

2009 2008

Million Million

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging

Interest and other finance costs

Bank loans and other loans repayable within years
576 1088

Other loans not repayable within years
54 39

Gain on loan hedging 134 50

496 1077

Less Amount capitalised see note 263 623

233 454

Directors emoluments see note

Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 101 101

Pension scheme contribution 10 10

Discretionary bonus 56 50

167 161

Less Amount paid back

158 152

Auditors remuneration

Costs of properties sold 8901 5324

Depreciation
349 284

Impairment of investments available for sale 665 1139

Operating lease charges properties
160 96

and after crediting

Net rental income 1138 920

Interest income from banks 21 84

Interest income from loan receivables 100 150

Interest income from jointly controlled entities/associates 68 96

Income from listed investments in securities

Dividend income from equity securities 293 753

Income from unlisted investments in securities

Dividend income from equity securities

Interest income from debt securities 26 69

Gain on disposal of investments available for sale 121 1174

Gain/Ioss on investments held for trading 455 752

Gain on disposal of investment properties 350

Profit on disposal of associates 952

Notes

Interest was capitalised to property development projects at an average annual rate of approximately .25%

2008 3.5% during the year
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Profit before Taxation continued

Directors emoluments comprised payments to the Companys directors including the five highest paid individuals

in the Group in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group The independent non-executive

directors receive an annual directors fee of $120000 2008 $120000 each and for those acting as members

of the Audit Committee and/or Remuneration Committee additional annual fee of $130000 2008 $130000

each is paid for the former and $60000 2008 $60000 each is paid for the latter The emoluments of the

Companys directors excluding emoluments received by them from the Groups associates are as follows

Li Ka-shing

Li Tzar Kuoi Victor

Kam Hing Lam

Ip Tak Chuen Edmond

Chung Sun Keung Davy

Pau Yee Wan Ezra

Woo Chia Ching Grace

Chiu Kwok Hung Justin

Leung Siu Hon

Fok Kin-fling Canning

Frank John Sixt

Chow Kun Chee Roland

George Cohn Magnus

Kwok Tun-li Stanley

Yeh Yuan Chang Anthony

Simon Murray

Chow Nm Mow Albert

Hung Siu-lin Katherine

Wong Yick-ming Rosanna

Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Kwan Chiu Yin Robert

Total for the year 2009

Total for the year 2008

0.01

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.31

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.25

0.18

0.25

0.12

Inducement or

Discretionary Compensation

0.01

46.86

18.41

20.26

19.79

18.77

21.00

19.94

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.31

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.25

0.18

0.25

0.12

9.76 56.56 167.11

9.76 50.31

2008

Total

Million

0.01

45.63

18.35

19.65

18.62

17.85

19.83

18.77

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.31

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.25

0.18

0.25

0.12

Other than directors fee of $5000 no other remuneration was paid to the Chairman

Mr Li Ka-shing The amount of directors fee shown above is result of rounding The directors fee of

$50000 received by Mr Li Ka-shing from Hutchison Whampoa Limited was paid back to the Company

Part of the directors emoluments in the sum of $3720000 received by Mr Li Tzar Kuoi Victor from

the Hutchison Whampoa Group and the directors fee of $75000 received by him from CK Life Sciences

Intl Holdings Inc were paid back to the Company

Part of the directors emoluments in the sum of $1572000 received by Mr Kam Hing Lam from the

Hutchison Whampoa Group and the directors emoluments of $1575000 received by him from CK Life

Sciences Intl Holdings Inc were paid back to the Company

Part of the directors emoluments in the sum of $1875000 received by Mr Tak Chuen Edmond

from Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited and the directors fee of $75000 received by him

from CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc were paid back to the Company

Director

Fees

Million

Fee

2009

Total

Million Million

Salaries

Allowances

and Benefits

in Kind

Million

33.13

16.17

13.27

8.24

9.34

9.34

8.38

Pension

Scheme

Contribution

Million

3.31

1.62

1.32

0.82

0.93

0.93

0.83

Bonus

Million

10.30

0.50

5.55

10.61

8.38

10.61

10.61

2.92 97.87

2.92 97.79 160.78
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Taxation

2009 2008

Million Million

Hong Kong profits tax 961 793

Overseas tax 31

Deferred tax 652 59

1644 859

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% 2008 16.5% on the estimated

assessable profits for the
year

and operating profit after adjusting for share of taxation of jointly controlled

entities is reconciled with taxation as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Adjusted operating profit at Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5%

2008 16.5% 2735 1539

Effect of tax rate differences at overseas locations 1157 871

Effect of tax rate changes at overseas locations on deferred tax liabilities

Effect of tax rate changes in Hong Kong on deferred tax liabilities 84
Profit on disposal of associates 157
Dividend income 34 101
Increase in fair value of investment properties 28
Profit on disposal of properties held for rental 57 17
Net effect of tax losses and deductible temporary differences

utilised/not recognised 41 50
Net effect of non-assessable/deductible items 58

Others

3562 2304

Less Share of taxation of jointly controlled entities 1918 1445

1644 859

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Profit attributable to shareholders dealt with in the income statement of the Company is $6372 million

2008 $5951 million and dividends paid and proposed for the year by the Company are as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Interim dividend paid at $0.50 2008-$0.50 per share 1158 1158

Final dividend proposed at $2.20 2008-$1.95 per share 5096 4517

6254 5675
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Earnings Per Share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to shareholders and on 2316164338

shares 2008 2316164338 shares in issue during the year

Fixed Assets

Hotels and

Land and serviced suites

buildings in in outside Other

Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong assets Total

Group Million Million Million Million Million

Cost

At 1st January 2008 640 9865 1451 1059 13015

Translation difference 89 15 104

Additions/transfers 294 814 157 1271

Disposals 14 14

At 31st December 2008 934 10679 1546 1217 14376

Translation difference

Additions/transfers 934 184 12 159 579

Disposals 16 16

At 31st December 2009 10863 1560 1361 13784

Accumulated depreciation/provisions

At 1st January 2008 1519 226 710 2455

Translation difference 14 12 26

Depreciation 157 34 93 284

Disposals 13 13

At 31st December 2008 1676 274 802 2752

Translation difference

Depreciation 195 35 119 349

Disposals 14 14

At 31st December 2009 1871 309 908 3088

Net book value

At 31st December 2009 8992 1251 453 10696

At 31st December 2008 934 9003 1272 415 11624

At 1st January 2008 640 8346 1225 349 10560

At the
year

end date

certain properties in Hong Kong with aggregate carrying value of $8437 million 2008 $9598 million

and certain properties outside Hong Kong with aggregate carrying value of $1251 million 2008

$1272 million were held under medium term leases all other properties were held under long

leases and

certain hotel properties with aggregate carrying value of $736 million 2008 $748 million were

pledged to secure bank loan facilities
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Fixed Assets continued

Company

Cost

Other assets

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million

At 1st January

Additions

Disposals

At the year end date

investment properties have been revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited independent

professional valuers on market value basis which has taken into account comparable market

transactions and net income derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

income potential

investment properties with aggregate carrying value of $18900 million 2008 $15060 million

and $533 million 2008 $610 million were held under medium term leases and long leases

respectively and

gross rental income and direct operating expenses of investment properties during the year amounted

to $1051 million 2008 $813 million and $16 million 2008 $14 million respectively

191 189

At 31st December 186 191

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 180 177

Depreciation

Disposals

At 31st December 179 180

Net book value at 31st December 11

Investment Properties

Group

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008

Million Million Million

Investment properties in Hong Kong

At 1st January 5670 5497 5497

Additions 358 39

Transfer from land and buildings 934

Disposals 1386
Increase in fair value 3857 134

19433 15670 15497
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10 Subsidiaries

Company

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million

Unlisted investments in subsidiaries 2071 2071

Amounts due from subsidiaries 30302 30146

Amounts due to subsidiaries 819 1668

31554 30549

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries are set out in Appendix

11 Associates

Group Company

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million Million Million Million

Listed investments in associates 28132 28712 28676

Unlisted investments in associates 93 81 83 50 50

Share of results less dividends 119624 115973 113491

147849 144766 142250 50 50

Amounts due from associates 200 211 317

148049 144977 142567 50 50

Market value of investments

in associates

listed in Hong Kong 115735 84288 192562

Particulars regarding the principal associates are set out in Appendix II Extracts of financial statements

of Hutchison Whampoa Limited and CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc listed associates are set out

in Appendix IV and Appendix respectively
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12 Jointly Controlled Entities

Group Company

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million Million Million Million

Unlisted investments in jointly

controlled entities 8908 8787 6380

Share of results less dividends 11146 8576 5688

20054 17363 12068

Amounts due from jointly

controlled entities 12537 12028 11546 721 462

32591 29391 23614 721 462

Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities are set out in Appendix Ill The aggregate

amounts of non-current assets current assets current liabilities and non-current liabilities at the year end

date and the aggregate amounts of income and expenses for the
year

related to the Groups interests

in jointly controlled entities are as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Non-current assets 18762 18041

Current assets 34093 28314

Current liabilities 9108 7364
Non-current liabilities 9499 8136
Income 9764 6515

Expenses 5115 2671

13 Investments Available for Sale

Group

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008

Million Million Million

Listed investments

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 2654 1748 7082

Equity securities listed overseas 3624 2437 2316

6278 4185 9398

Unlisted investments

Equity securities 119 72 92

Debt securities 629 421 570

748 493 662

7026 4678 10060
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14 Stock of Properties

Group Company

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million Million Million Million

Properties for/under development 17340 27835 25952

Joint development projects 38250 34785 29364

Properties for sale 7409 1653 4643

62999 64273 59959

At the year end date properties for/under development and joint development projects amounting to

$32670 million 2008 $39325 million were not scheduled for completion within twelve months

15 Debtors Deposits and Prepayments

Group Company

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million Million Million Million

Trade debtors 526 1207 1429

Loan receivables 1202 2001 1855

Deposits prepayments and others 1071 696 782 269 99

2799 3904 4066 269 99

The Groups trade debtors mainly comprise receivables for sale of properties and rental Sales terms vary

for each
property project and are determined with reference to the prevailing market conditions Sale of

properties are normally completed when the sale prices are fully paid and deferred payment terms are

sometimes offered to purchasers at premium Rentals are payable in advance by tenants

At the year end date loan receivables included mortgage loans amounting to $278 million 2008

$349 million which were pledged to secure the financing bank loans

Ageing analysis of the Groups trade debtors at the year end date is as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Current to one month 491 1181

Two to three months 27 20

Over three months

526 1207
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16 Investments Held for Trading

Group

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million

1874 813 559

Unlisted investments

Debt securities 53 45 880

1927 858 1439

Bank and Other Loans

Group

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008

Million Million Million

Bank loans repayable

within year
4421 7613 6172

after year
but not exceeding years 9035 5997 4170

after years but not exceeding years 9813 16168 13445

23269 29778 23787

6her loans repayable

within year 2789 1378 2700

after year but not exceeding years 3731 2909 1382

after years
but not exceeding years 1550 5034 4008

after years
1150 1150 650

9220 10471 8740

32489 40249 32527

Less Amounts classified under current liabilities 7210 8991 8872

25279 31258 23655

In 2008 the Group entered into transaction with financial institution whereby for total consideration

of $2.1 billion certain overseas listed equity securities held by the Group were transferred to the other

party at an inception price together with put options exercisable at 200% of the inception price at the

end of three-year period

It is expected that the price of the transferred equity securities is not likely to rise above the 200%

level of the inception price within the three-year period and the put options will be exercised Hence

the Group remains exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of the transferred equity securities below the

200% level of the inception price Therefore the total consideration received has been accounted for

as loan and amortised at an annual rate of 2.7% approximately and the transferred equity securities

have remained as the Groups investments available for sale and included in note 13

Listed investments

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

Equity securities listed overseas

829

1045

1/1/2008

Million

363

196

121

692

17

Amounts classified under non-current liabilities
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17 Bank and Other Loans continued

At the year end date

the amortised cost of the total consideration received and the carrying value of the transferred

equity securities mentioned above were $2127 million 2008 $2069 million and $1508 million

2008 $975 million respectively

bank loans amounting to $357 million 2008 $482 million were secured by certain assets of the

Group

other loans included fixed rate bonds and notes issued by wholly owned subsidiaries and guaranteed

by the Company as follows

issued by Cheung Kong Finance Cayman Limited and listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

HK$ 300000000 8.38% due January 2010 issued in 2000

ii issued by Cheung Kong Bond Finance Limited in Hong Kong

HK$ 500000000 4.4% due April 2015 issued in 2005

HK$ 150000000 5.1% due April 2016 issued in 2006

HK$ 500000000 3.18% due May 2011 issued in 2008

HK$ 800000000 3.48% due April 2013 issued in 2008

HK$ 500000000 3.9% due May 2013 issued in 2008

HK$ 500000000 4.88% due August 2018 issued in 2008

iii issued by Joynote Ltd and listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange

SGD 200000000 3.76% due October 2011 issued in 2006

iv issued by Cheung Kong Finance Japan Limited in Japan

JPY 31500000000 0.95% due August 2010 issued in 2005

and swaps arrangements were in place to convert the rates and the related terms of the fixed rate

bonds and notes to floating rate basis and Japanese Yen to US$ The aggregate fair value of the

derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes amounted to net asset of $689 million

2008 $877 million

after hedging where appropriate bank and other loans approximated their fair value and carried

interest at effective rates generally based on inter-bank offered rate of the relevant currency plus

margin of approximately per annum
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18 Creditors and Accruals

Group Company

31/12/2008 1/1/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Million Million Million Million

Trade creditors

Accruals and other creditors

Customers deposits received

19 Loan from Joint Development Partner

Pursuant to the terms of joint development project the Group obtained loan of $4000 million from

the joint development partner in 2006 to finance the payment of land premium of the joint development

project The loan is repayable by two equal instalments of which the first instalment has been repaid

on 31st December 2009 and the second instalment is repayable upon completion of phase or on

31st December 2011 whichever is earlier of the joint development project

20 Deferred Tax Liabilities

At the year end date

the Groups deferred tax liabilities amounting to $664 million 2008 $598 million and $1347 million

2008 $761 million were provided on temporary differences arising from accelerated tax depreciation

and changes in fair value of investment properties respectively and

the Groups tax losses and deductible temporary differences amounting to $3322 million 2008

$3411 million of which $53 million 2008 $96 million expire within years were not recognised

21 Share Capital

Company

1/1/2008 31/12/2009

No of shares Million

Authorised

Shares of $0.5 each 1900

Issued and fully paid

Shares of $0.5 each

31/12/2009

Million

444

3582

8052

388

3490

3062

3239

3650

1541

164 141

12078 6940 8430 164 141

Ageing analysis of the Groups trade creditors at the year end date is as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Current to one month 365 349

Two to three months 40 25

Over three months 39 14

444 388

31/12/2009

No of shares

31/12/2008

No of shares

3800000000 3800000000 3800000000

31/12/2008

Million

1/1/2008

Million

1900 1900

2316164338 2316164338 2316164338 1158 1158 1158
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22 Reserves

Company

Capital Retained 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

reserve profits Total Total

Million Million Million Million

At 1st January 199 21069 21268 20992

Profit for the year 6372 6372 5951

Dividend paid 5675 5675 5675

At 31st December 199 21766 21965 21268

The Companys reserves available for distribution to shareholders including the proposed final dividend

amounted to $21766 million 2008 $21069 million Proposed final dividend for 2008 was approved

by shareholders on 21st May 2009 and paid on 26th May 2009

23 Operating Lease

Analysis of future minimum lease income receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases

mainly on to year terms for property rental at the year end date is as follows

Group

2009 2008

Million Million

Future minimum lease income receivable

not later than year 979 787

later than year but not later than years
911 590

later than years

1892 1381

Analysis of future minimum lease charges payable by the Group and the Company under non-cancellable

operating leases at the year end date are as follows

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Million Million

Future minimum lease charges payable

not later than year 142 136 107 108

later than year but not later than years 86 203 71 178

228 339 178 286
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24 Segment Information

Assets and liabilities of the Group analysed by operating activities are as follows

Company Jointly

and controlled

subsidiaries entities Assets Liabilities

Miljion Million Million Million

At 31st December 2009

Property development 69034 1887 87909 12094

Property investment 19464 10263 29727 503
Hotels and serviced suites 10900 3386 14286 529

Property and project management 255 255 90

Total segment assets/liabilities 132177 13216
Investments in listed associates 147021

Cash and investments in securities 14917

Bank and other loans 32489
Other assets/liabilities 3355 4361

Total assets/liabilities 297470 50066

At 31st December 2008

Property development 67310 14905 82215 8663

Property investment 16640 10914 27554 320
Hotels and serviced suites 10837 3473 14310 895

Property and project management 177 177 62

Total segment assets/Iiabilities 124256 9940
Investments in listed associates 144143

Cash and investments in securities 10680

Bank and other loans 40249
Other assets/liabilities 4584 3999

Total assets/liabilities 283663 54188

At the year end date the Groups non-current segment assets mainly comprising investment properties

and hotels and serviced suites are located as follows

Company and Jointly controlled

subsidiaries entities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Hong Kong 28777 25931 2540 2585 31317 28516

The Mainland 1314 1322 12976 13261 14290 14583

Singapore 2635 1865 2635 1865

United Kingdom 153 139 153 139

30091 27253 18304 17850 48395 45103
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24 Segment Information continued

Depreciation and additions to non-current segment assets during the year analysed by operating activities

are as follows

Additions to

non-current

Depreciation segment assets

2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Million Million

Property investment 357 319

Hotels and serviced suites 323 261 320 932

Property and project management 28

338 274 705 1260

Others 11 10 50

349 284 713 1310

25 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At the year end date

the Group had capital commitments as follows

contracted but not provided for

fixed assets $27 million 2008 $353 million

jointly controlled entities $1086 million 2008 $1447 million

others Nil 2008 $91 million

ii authorised but not contracted for

fixed assets $16 million 2008 $12 million

the Groups share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled entities were as follows

contracted but not provided for $643 million 2008 $838 million

ii authorised but not contracted for $3024 million 2008 $3780 million

the minimum share of revenue/profit guaranteed by the Company to be received by other partners

of joint development projects amounted to $1398 million 2008 $1410 million and

the Company provided guarantees for loan financing as follows

bank and other loans utilised by subsidiaries $31882 million 2008 $39056 million

ii loan from joint development partner to subsidiary $2000 million 2008 $4000 million

iii bank loans utilised by jointly controlled entities $50 million 2008 $45 million

iv bank loans utilised by investee company $283 million 2008 Nil

and certain subsidiaries provided guarantees for bank loans utilised by jointly controlled entities

amounted to $1555 million 2008 $1489 million
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26 Employees Pension Schemes

The principal employees pension schemes operated by the Group including the occupational retirement

schemes and the mandatory provident fund schemes are defined contribution schemes For occupational

retirement schemes contributions are made by either the employer only or both the employer and the

employees at rates ranging from approximately 5% to 10% of the employees salary For mandatory

provident fund schemes contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at 5% each

of the employees relevant monthly income which is capped at $20000

During the year the Groups costs incurred on employees pension schemes were $92 million 2008

$85 million and forfeited contributions in the amount of $3 million 2008 $4 million were used to

reduce current years contributions

27 Related Party Transactions

During the year and in the ordinary course of business the Group undertook various joint venture

projects with related parties including the Chairman Mr Li Ka-shing and Hutchison Whampoa Limited

on normal commercial terms Advances were made to/received from and guarantees were provided for

these joint venture projects on pro rata basis

Advances made by the Group at the year end date were disclosed as amount due from associates and

jointly controlled entities in notes 11 and 12 Guarantees provided by the Group for bank loans utilised

by jointly controlled entities at the year end date were disclosed in note 25

Other than the aforementioned there were no other significant related party transactions requiring

disclosure in the financial statements

28 Financial Risks and Management

Financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group include investments in securities cash balances

maintained for liquidity loan and other receivables bank and other loan borrowings and derivative

financial instruments for investment and financial purposes The Groups treasury policies and how the

management manages to mitigate the risks associated with these financial assets and financial liabilities

are described below

Treasury policies

The Group maintains conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure management At the

year end date approximately 81 .7% of the Groups borrowings were in HK$ with the balance in

US$ or swapped into US$ and SGD mainly for the purpose of financing projects outside Hong

Kong The Group derives its revenue mainly in HK$ cash balances and marketable securities are

maintained mainly in HK$ or US$ and the Group ensures that its exposure to fluctuations in foreign

exchange rates is minimised

The Groups borrowings are principally on floating rate basis The fixed rate bonds and notes

issued by the Group have associated swaps arrangements in place to convert the rates and related

terms to floating rate basis

When appropriate and at times of interest rate or exchange rate uncertainty or volatility hedging

instruments including swaps and forwards are used by the Group in the management of exposure

to interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations
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28 Financial Risks and Management continued

Risk management

Loan receivables normally carry interest at rates with reference to banks lending rates and are

secured by collaterals including charge on assets and guarantees Trade debtors include mainly

receivables arising from sale and lease of properties to the public The Group has legal right to

claim repossession of the properties in the event of default by purchasers/tenants At the year end

date overdue loan receivables and trade debtors amounted to less than of the Groups net

assets and regular review and follow-up actions are carried out on the overdue amounts to minimise

exposures to credit risk

Cash balances maintained for liquidity are placed with number of major banks Investments in

securities and transactions involving derivative financial instruments are generally limited to issuers

and counter-parties with sound credit

Investments in securities and derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value Fair values are

determined based on quoted market price otherwise with reference to professional valuations and

or estimations that take into account assumptions and estimates on factors affecting the value of

these financial instruments and change of such assumptions and estimates to reasonably possible

alternatives would not have material effect on the Groups result for the year and financial position

at the year end date An analysis of these financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group

based on the degree to which their fair values are observable and grouped into Levels to is as

follows

Level unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level value inputs other than quoted prices that are observable either directly or indirectly

Level value inputs that are not based on observable market data

31/12/2009

Level Level Level Total

Million Million Million Million

Financial assets

Investments available for sale

Equity securities 6278 13 106 6397

Debt securities 629 629

Investments held for trading

Equity securities 1874 1874

Debt securities 53 53

Derivative financial instruments 83 83

8152 778 106 9036

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 460 460
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Notes to Financial Statements continued

28 Financial Risks and Management continued

Risk management continued

The movement of Level fair value measurement of equity securities available for sale during the

year was as follows

Million

Fair value at 1st January 2009 61

Purchases 40

Gain in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income

Fair value at 31st December 2009 106

The exposure to price changes is managed by closely monitoring the changes in market conditions

that may have an impact on the market prices or factors affecting the value of these financial

instruments If the fair value of the investments in securities and derivative financial instruments was

5% higher/lower at the
year

end date the Groups investment revaluation reserve would increase

decrease by approximately $231 million 2008 $210 million and the Groups profit for the year

would increase/decrease by approximately $234 million 2008 $109 million

The Groups borrowings are subject to interest rate fluctuation It is estimated that an increase

decrease of in interest rates would increase/decrease the Groups finance costs for the year

by approximately $304 million 2008 $382 million assuming the change in interest rates had

been applied to the Groups bank and other loans at the year
end date which were kept constant

throughout the year and the amount of finance costs capitalised would increase/decrease by

approximately $161 million 2008 $221 million based on the proportion of finance costs capitalised

during the year

Liquidity management

The Group monitors its liquidity requirements on short to medium term basis and arranges

refinancing of the Groups borrowings when appropriate With cash and marketable securities in

hand as well as available banking facilities the Groups liquidity position remains strong and the

Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its commitments and working capital requirements

The contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest payments after hedging where

appropriate computed at rates current at the year end date of the Groups borrowings by contractual

maturities at the year end date are as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Within year 9402 11939

After year but not exceeding years 13012 9567

After years but not exceeding years 11501 24007

After years 1164 1254

35079 46767
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29 Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while

maximising returns to its shareholders through the optimisation of debt and equity balance The capital

structure of the Group consists of debt which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 17 and 19
bank balances and deposits and shareholders fund comprising share capital share premium and reserves

as disclosed in the statement of financial position The Group reviews its capital structure on regular

basis and maintains low gearing ratio determined as the proportion of the Groups net borrowings

after deducting bank balances and deposits to shareholders fund

The gearing ratio at the year end date is as follows

2009 2008

Million Million

Bank and other loans 32489 40249

Loan from joint development partner 2000 4000

Total borrowings 34489 44249

Less Bank balances and deposits 11423 7173

Net borrowings 23066 37076

Shareholders fund 243599 225133

Gearing ratio 9.5% 16.5%

30 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements reported in Hong Kong dollars and set out on pages 92 to 132 were approved

by the board of directors on 30th March 2010
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Principal Subsidiaries

Appendix

The Directors are of the opinion that complete list of the particulars of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive

length and therefore the following list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which materially affect

the results or assets of the Group All the companies listed below were incorporated in Hong Kong except

otherwise stated

Name

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital

Nominal Value

Effective percentage

held by the Company

Directly Indirectly Principal Activities

AMTD Group Company Limited

British Virgin Islands

Bermington Investment Limited

Biro Investment Limited

Chaview Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands

Cheer Good Limited

Cheung Kong Bond Finance Limited

Cayman Islands

Cheung Kong Finance Cayman Limited

Cayman Islands

Cheung Kong Finance Company Limited

Cheung Kong Finance Japan Limited

Cayman Islands

Cheung Kong Finance MTN Limited

Cayman Islands

Cheung Kong Holdings China Limited

Cheung Kong Investment Company Limited

Cheung Kong Property Development Limited

Citybase Property Management Limited

City Investments Limited

Diamond Jubilee Investment Limited

East City Investments Limited

East Leader Investments Limited

Fantastic State Limited

Flying Snow Limited

Focus Eagle Investments Limited

British Virgin Islands

Garbo Field Limited

Glass Bead Limited British Virgin Islands

Global Coin Limited

Goodwell Property Management Limited

Harbour Grand Hong Kong Limited

Harbour Plaza Degrees Limited

iMarkets Limited

Joynote Ltd Singapore

Kingsmark Investments Limited

US$ 10000

10000

US$ 1000

HK$ 2500000 100

US$

US$ 1000

HK$

20

100000

SGD

HK$

4490 Financial planning

mortgage servicing

corporate insurance

100 Hotels serviced suites

100 Property development

100 Investment holding

100 Property development

100 Finance

100 Finance

Finance

100 Finance

100 Finance

100 Investment holding in

the Mainland projects

Investment holding

Project management

100 Property management

100 Property development

100 Property development

100 Property development

100 Property development

100 Property development

100 Property investment

100 Investment holding

Property development

Property investment

Property investment

Property management

Hotels serviced suites

Hotels serviced suites

Provider of electronic

trading platform

100 Finance

100 Property development

investment

K$

K$

US$

HK$

uSs

100

100

HK$

HK$

K$

K$

HK$

K$

HK$

HK$

K$

US$

K$

US$

K$

K$

K$

Ks

K$

100000

30000000

100

100

100

100

100

100

54.83
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Name

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital

Nominal Value

Effective percentage

held by the Company

Directly Indirectly Principal Activities

Luxury Green Development Pte Ltd Singapore

Megawin International Limited

British Virgin Islands

Metrofond Limited

Mutual Luck Investment Limited

New Accord Limited

New City Investments Limited

New Profit Resources Limited

New Vision Development Limited

Pako Wise Limited

Pearl Wisdom Limited

Perfect Idea Limited

Pofield Investments Limited British Virgin Islands

Queensway Investments Limited

Rainbow Elite Investments Limited

Randash Investment Limited

Regent Land Investments Limited

Rich Asia Investments Limited

Romefield Limited British Virgin Islands

Ruby Star Enterprises Limited

Sai Ling Realty Limited

Sino China Enterprises Limited

The Center Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands

Tin Shui Wal Development Limited

Tony Investments Limited

Total Win Group Limited British Virgin Islands

Towerich Limited

Union Art Investment Limited

Volly Best Investment Limited

Wealth Pine Investment Limited

Winchesto Finance Company Limited

Yick Ho Limited

HK$ 1000

HK$

US$

HK$

HK$

HK$

HK$

HK$ 15000000

HK$ 6000000

100 Property development

100 Property development

100 Property development

60 Property development

100 Property development

100 Property development

98.47 Property development

100 Property development

Property investment

100 Hotels serviced suites

100 Property development

100 Property investment

85 Property development

100 Property development

60.9 Hotels serviced suites

100 Property development

85 Property development

100 Investment holding

100 Property development

Property development

100 Hotels serviced suites

100 Property investment

Property investment

Property development

Investment holding

Hotels serviced suites

Property development

Property development

Property development

Finance

100 Investment in hotel projects

The principal area of operation of the above companies were in Hong Kong except the following

Name Area of Operation

Cheung Kong Finance Cayman Limited

Cheung Kong Finance Japan Limited

Cheung Kong Holdings China Limited

Joynote Ltd

Luxury Green Development Pte Ltd

Megawin International Limited

lick Ho imited

Europe

Japan

The Mainland

Singapore

Singapore

The Mainland

SGD

US$

K$

K$

K$

K$

K$

HK$

K$

K$

K$

US$

K$

K$

K$

K$

HK$

US$

K$

K$

K$

US$

30000

20

110

1000000

10000

100

100

100

98.47

100

100

51

100

90

85

The Mainland
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Principal Associates

Appendix II

The Directors are of the opinion that complete list of the particulars of all the associates will be of excessive

length and therefore the following list contains only the particulars of the associates which materially affect

the results or assets of the Group All the companies listed below were incorporated in Hong Kong except

otherwise stated

Name

CEF Holdings Limited

CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc

Cayman Islands

Harbour Plaza Hotel Management International

Limited British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong Concord Holdings Limited

Hutchison Whampoa Limited

Effective percentage

of Issued Ordinary

Share Capital

held by the Company

Directly Indirectly

Investment holding

45.3 Research development

manufacturing commercialisation

marketing selling of environmental

human health products investments

50 Hotel management

40 Investment holding power generation

49.9 Ports related services property

hotels retail energy infrastructure

telecommunications finance

investments others

50 Radio broadcasting

The principal area of operation of the above companies were in Hong Kong except the following

Name Area of Operation

50

Principal Activities

Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited

Hong Kong Concord Holdings Limited The Mainland
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Principal Jointly Controlled Entities

Appendix III

The Directors are of the opinion that complete list of the particulars of all the jointly controlled entities will

be of excessive length and therefore the following list contains only the particulars of the jointly controlled

entities which materially affect the results or assets of the Group All the jointly controlled entities below were

incorporated in Hong Kong except otherwise stated

Name

Afford Limited

Bayswater Developments Limited

British Virgin Islands

Beright Investments Limited British Virgin Islands

Billion Rise Limited British Virgin Islands

Chesgold Limited

Cheung Wo Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands

Choicewide Group Limited British Virgin Islands

Circadian CH Limited The United Kingdom

Circadian Limited The United Kingdom

Clayton Power Enterprises Limited

Cosmos Wide International Limited

Dragon Beauty International Limited

Elegant Wealth Investment Limited

Extreme Selection Investments Limited

British Virgin Islands

Forton Investment Limited

Gislingham Limited British Virgin Islands

Glory Sense Limited

Golden Castle Management Limited

British Virgin Islands

Harbour Plaza Metropolis Limited British Virgin Islands

Hildon Development Limited

Hong Kong Shanghai Development Co Ltd Samoa

Hui Xian Investment Limited

Hutchison Whampoa Properties Chengdu Limited

The Mainland

Konorus Investment Limited

Mapleleaf Developments Limited British Virgin Islands

Mighty General Limited

Montoya HK Limited

New China Sheen Limited

New China Target Limited

Effective percentage

of Ownership Interest

held by the Company

Directly Indirectly Principal Activities

50 Property development

50 Property development

investment

Property development

Property development

Property investment

Property investment

Investment in property project

Property development

Property development

Property development

Property development

Property development

Property development

Property development

50 Property development

50 Property development

50 Property development

50 Property development

Hotels serviced suites

Property development

Property development

investment

Investment in property project

Property development

50

50

50

50

50

47.5

47.5

50

50

50

49

50

50

50

25

33.4

50

42.5

25

50

50

50

50

Property investment

Property development

Property development

Property development

Property development

Property development
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Principal Jointly Controlled Entities continued

Name

Shanklin Developments Limited British Virgin Islands

Sky Island Limited British Virgin Islands

Smart Rainbow Limited British Virgin Islands

Swayfield Limited British Virgin Islands

True Ample Developments Limited British Virgin Islands

Willpower Developments Limited British Virgin Islands

Zealand Limited British Virgin Islands

Effective percentage

of Ownership Interest

held by the Company

50 Property development

50 Property development

50 Hotels serviced suites

30 Property investment

50 Property development

50 Property development

50 Property development

The principal area of operation of the above jointly controlled entities were in Hong Kong except the following

Name

Afford Limited

Bayswater Developments Limited

Beright Investments Limited

Billion Rise Limited

Chesgold Limited

Cheung Wo Enterprises Limited

Choicewide Group Limited

Circadian CH Limited

Circadian Limited

Area of Operation

Elegant Wealth Investment Limited

Extreme Selection Investments Limited

Forton Investment Limited

Gislingham Limited

Glory Sense Limited

Golden Castle Management Limited

Hildon Development Limited

Hong Kong Shanghai Development Co Ltd

Hui Xian Investment Limited

Hutchison Whampoa Properties Chengdu Limited

Mapleleaf Developments Limited

Mighty General Limited

Montoya HK Limited

New China Sheen Limited

New China Target Limited

Shanklin Developments Limited

Sky Island Limited

True Ample Developments Limited

Willpower Developments Limited

Zealand Limited

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

Singapore

The Mainland

The Mainland

Singapore

The United Kingdom

The United Kingdom

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland

Directly Indirectly Principal Activities

The Mainland

The Mainland

The Mainland
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Extracts of Financial Statements of Hutchison Whampoa Limited

Appendix IV

Extracts of the 2009 published financial statements of Hutchison Whampoa Limited listed associate are set

out below

Consolidated Income Statement

For the
year

ended 31st December 2009

As restated

2009 2008

Million Million

Company and subsidiary companies

Revenue 208808 235478

Cost of inventories sold 74275 77172
Staff costs 28309 31929
Telecommunications customer acquisition costs 16544 22926

Depreciation and amortisation 16258 24876
Other operating expenses 60769 66001

Change in fair value of investment properties 1117 672

Profit on disposal of investments and others 12472 3458

Share of profits less losses after tax of

Associated companies before profit on disposal of investments and others 5927 12522

Jointly controlled entities 3677 5286

Associated companys profit on disposal of an investment and others 3122

35846 37634

Interest and other finance costs 9613 7286

Profit before tax 26233 20348

Current tax charge 4588 3443
Deferred tax credit 92 2576

Profit after tax 21737 19481

Allocated as Profit attributable to minority interests 7569 6800

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 14168 12681
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Extracts of Financial Statements of Hutchison Whampoa Limited continued

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December 2009

31/12/2009

Million

171399

42323

33984

70750

28858

7351

84748

51568

14657

5286

23213

As restated

31/12/2008

Million

173246

41282

34745

72175

30436

10486

76478

45865

13248

8904

30735

As restated

1/1/2008

Million

181342

43680

36272

91897

31573

10901

75545

39725

17619

5082

69192

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Investment properties

Leasehold land

Telecommunications licences

Goodwill

Brand names and other rights

Associated companies

Interests in joint ventures

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Liquid funds and other listed investments

534137 537600 602828

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 92521 57286 1307

Trade and other receivables 48146 54767 55374

Inventories 16593 18528 20999

157260 130581 187680

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 73029 82599 90141

Bank and other debts 17589 23945 50255

Current tax liabilities 3249 1274 2336

93867 107818 142732

Net current assets 63393 22763 44948

Total assets less current liabilities 597530 560363 647776

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other debts 242851 234141 260086

Interest bearing loans from minority shareholders 13424 13348 12508

Deferred tax liabilities 13355 13616 17957

Pension obligations 2436 2541 1468

Other non-current liabilities 4520 4586 5929

276586 268232 297948

Net assets 320944 292131 349828

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 1066 1066 1066

Reserves 282465 259253 300803

Total shareholders funds 283531 260319 301869

Minority interests 37413 31812 47959

320944 292131Total equity 349828
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Extracts of Financial Statements of CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc

Appendix

Extracts of the 2009 published financial statements of CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc listed associate

are set out below

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year
ended 31st December 2009

2009 2008

$000 $OOO

Turnover 2678889 2991797

Cost of sales 1839133 2084217

839756 907580

Other income gains and losses 292345 275863

Staff costs 310077 344459

Depreciation 34724 31876

Amortisation of intangible assets 47808 5041

Other expenses 494779 442233

Revaluation deficit on building 1420

Finance costs 18110 66982

Share of results of associates 11272 9878

Profit/Ioss before taxation 215331 325543

Taxation 29271 27540

Profit/Ioss for the year 186060 353083

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 187098 351768

Minority interests 1038 1315

186060 353083
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Extracts of Financial Statements of CK Life Sciences Intl Holdings Inc continued

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31st December 2009

2009 2008

$oOo $000

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 458923 432803

Prepaid lease for land 11761 12074

Intangible assets 3972183 3722997
Interests in associates 17842 44472
Convertible debentures issued by an associate 58885
Available-for-sale investments 150101 209343

Investments at fair value through profit or loss 192839 58430

Deferred taxation 21056 19076

Long-term receivables 38580

4863285 4558080

Current assets

Debt investment 59474
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 163171 139351
Derivative financial instruments 2633 5780

Tax recoverable 762 3629

Inventories 425921 4637
Receivables and prepayments 805906 615195

Deposits with financial institutions 44952

Bank balances and deposits 636895 303554

2035288 1645646

Current liabilities

Payables and accruals 621545 588995
Derivative financial instruments 23087 99398
Bank overdrafts 385 7445
Finance lease obligations 580 494
Taxation 48695 19945

694292 716277

Net current assets 1340996 929369

Total assets less current liabilities 6204281 5487449

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 1061300 1045675
Finance lease obligations 807 1108
Loan from minority shareholder 34333 25907
Deferred taxation 31273 29887

1127713 1102577

Total net assets 5076568 4384872

Capital and reserves

Share capital 961107 961107

Share premium and reserves 3944251 3309661

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 4905358 4270768
Share option reserve of subsidiary 55

Minority interests 171155 114104

Total equity 5076568 4384872
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Independent Auditors Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEUNG KONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cheung Kong Holdings Limited the Company
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the Group set out on pages 92 to 132 which comprise the

consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31st December 2009 and the consolidated

income statement consolidated statement of comprehensive income consolidated statement of changes

in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these

consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance This responsibility

includes designing implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and

fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether

due to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates

that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and

to report our opinion solely to you as body in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and for no other purpose We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those standards require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to

fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entitys

preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our

audit opinion

Opinion
In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2009 and of the Groups profit and cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared

in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

30th March 2010
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Listed Affiliated Companies

Hutchison
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Limited
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Listed Aff ated Companies continued

Cheung Kong
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Holdings
Limited
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Listid Affihated Companies continued
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